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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M2

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEBIT BREEHEN

2015
—E-RF
(restated)
(Fe=751)
Revenue — sales of goods WA — EREE 748.6 1,008.6
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(E8B),/ & (87.0) 38.4
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AAREE AEN(EE),SEF
of the Company (82.6) 40.5
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) BRER(EER),BH GBI (1.668) 0.818
Average inventory turnover day (days) FHEFERERE(K) 70.6 96.3
Average trade receivable turnover day (days) FEHEWE SR EERXE (K) 69.9 87.8
Average trade payable turnover day (days) FHEMNE SERZIBEERE(K) 60.5 91.0
Total assets BERE 800.2 853.4
Total liabilities BERE 336.6 305.4
Financial position Revenue — sales of goods
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“the
Year”).

Over the past 12 months, uncertainty surrounding the macro-economic
environment has brought a new wave of challenges; nonetheless, we have
been actively exploring projects arising from the medical and healthcare
industry to meet our growth ambition and new business strategy.
Consistent with this strategy, we have established a new business
segment, specifically, securities and other assets investment (“Securities
and Other Assets Investment”), during the Year which will not only
conduct financial management operations but also facilitate the Group’s
exploration of investment and business opportunities relating to the
medical and healthcare industry. With regards to our core business, the
steady performance of electronic manufacturing services and distribution
business provided a stable source of revenue under the restructuring
period.

The healthcare industry has been rapidly evolving in the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC”), spurred on by economic expansion over the past
decade. Still other catalysts include the growing senior population; rising
threat of chronic diseases such as diabetes, hypertension, cancer and
respiratory illness; and concerns over environmental contamination and
food safety, all of which have driven demand for more healthcare services.
Yet another factor that will likely result in strong demand for more medical
facilities, equipment and services is the introduction of the two-child policy
back in October 2015 which may result in a new baby boom. In addition,
the healthcare policies in the PRC are undergoing extensive change. The
Chinese Government has encouraged breakthroughs via the approval of
guidelines on improving healthcare and medical services and through
medical reforms that will span the 13th Five-Year Plan period (2016-2020).
What is more, the implementation of the Two-Invoice system will help
bring credibility to the medical system and make the country’s medical
services more cost-effective and affordable. We see the potential benefits
arising from the aforementioned policies, and will make every effort to
capture growing demand and spending for healthcare in the PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMESR

As always, we will closely monitor market conditions and adhere to our
established business development strategy which involves exploring and
analyzing investment and business opportunities connected with the
medical and healthcare industry to pave the way for further business
growth.

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to all of our staff for their dedication and contributions to
the Group during the Year. Moreover, | would like to express my heartfelt
appreciation for the unwavering support of all our shareholders, investors,
customers and partners.

Gong Shaoxiang
Chairman
28 March 2017

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 Ef@ A ¥ EEER AT

B — A m ) B TR MOE B P BLE
EBERRE  ZRBFRRESRONEBER
REBITRABNREREGHE  UWE—FPRE
B RANEGRN -

AAERREFENEEE  HRM2BETN
FARAKBIEHNB I RERRRES - 1t
S AABUHBEMZERR - REE BEFP R
BEBH MO BIARROHI -

EDH
FE
—E—+F=ZA=-+N\H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the past year, the slowdown in the growth of the Chinese economy
and depreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB”) continued, and followed by the
unexpected results of the Brexit referendum and the election and
inauguration of a new president in the United States of America (the
“U.S.A.”), brought about unstable global economic conditions and an
uncertain macroeconomic environment to the market. As a result, the
Group’s business development was challenged.

Despite the challenging operational situation, the Group has made efforts
to chart a new course of development in order to pursue fresh
opportunities in the market. Supported by the solid foundation of the
Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) and Marketing and distribution
of communications products (“Distribution of Communications Products”)
segment, the Group’s business strategy has expanded its reach to the
medical and healthcare industry on one hand and to improve its capital
efficiency on the other. Hence, the Securities and Other Assets Investment,
a new reporting segment, was formed during the Year, so as to effectively
carry out the financial management function.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$748.7 million (2015: HK$1,008.6 million from the
continuing operations). Gross profit amounted to HK$149.9 million (2015:
HK$212.1 million from the continuing operations), while loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$82.6 million (2015: HK$1.8 million).

The Group continued to maintain a healthy financial position. As at 31
December 2016, it had bank and cash balances of HK$208.3 million (2015:
HK$441.2 million).

E G
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BREEMRNTIRE R BBEBERE T m N HEE
1 o B - AERER R ERETTME -

BELEVBERE BARECRNRDHHE
RER  UBKRMETOMEE - EETRIER
B ETRERS]) REHED HABRER (1D
HBAER ) DMBRAEENFH T AEEH
EBRE - THEREBELRIETE  MA—
HHEREHEARRE - Qi RFA - AEER
PR —ERmEDE MBS REMEERE -
B RE SR E IR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S Wm0

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products business

Revenue from the EMS and Distribution of Communications Products
business was HK$669.0 million (2015: HK$917.3 million) and HK$79.6
million (2015: HK$91.3 million), respectively. The decline was due to the
challenging global economic environment and weakened sales
performance of customers leading to the decrease in sales orders.
Additionally, the internal restructuring of business and the organisation
was also impacted the growth. Nevertheless, the Group’s ongoing and
successful efforts on cost control and the completion of the disposal of
loss-making subsidiaries in the second half of 2015 partially mitigated the
shortfall.

Securities and Other Assets Investment

The Group set up the Securities and Other Assets Investment segment in
the current year in order to identify suitable opportunities globally to
enhance its utilisation of capital and tap the healthcare and medical
industry.

While the Securities and Other Assets Investment segment is at start-up
stage, the revenue generated for this segment is therefore relatively
modest, amounting to approximately HK$0.2 million. However, the Group
has reserved sufficient financial resources so as to grasp opportunity when
it arises.

Although this segment is still at the development stage, the Group will
step up efforts to cooperate with companies and authorities in China in
view of significant room for growth in the PRC’s healthcare sector, with
the aim of seizing business opportunities in the growing healthcare sector
and driving new profit streams in the long term.
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Regarding the geographic markets of the three segments, the major
European countries (the United Kingdom, Switzerland, Poland and France)
represented the largest market for the Group with the revenue amounting
to HK$267.4 million (2015: HK$411.3 million from the continuing
operations), accounting for 35.7% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The U.S.A. market contributed HK$176.2 million
(2015: HK$181.9 million from the continuing operations) in revenue, and
accounted for 23.5% of the Group’s total revenue. The PRC (including
Hong Kong) and other countries accounted for HK$88.0 million and
HK$217.1 million respectively, representing 11.8% and 29.0% of the Group’s
total revenue (2015: HK$213.2 million and HK$202.1 million from the
continuing operations respectively).

EE-ELSBOMERTISHE - E2EUNER(E
B ImEt - KERAER) AREERANTSE
I A 267,400,000 7T (ZE—H4F : Jééﬂt
4E & ZET54A1,300,000870) F (EASEEBHZEZ
_/\EF""—)EJ:+_E|_|J:£FF§*E"]?J§”&)\35.7%°
EFEHISHUA 176,200,000 TT( —F—HEF ¢
B [ B AR $£7£181900,00058 7T) » 1AL E
KU A 235% - FE(RIEEE) REMTHED R
$% 18 88,000,000 7T & 217,100,000 7T * 9 Bl
IEAREBEUANES 229.0% (- FE—FHE : 5k
AFELE XD 5 A213200000% 7T &
202,100,000/ 7T) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R am Mo

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total revenue
of HK$748.7 million (2015: HK$1,008.6 million from the continuing
operations).

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. There are three broad groups of business
units for segment accounting purpose, EMS, Distribution of
Communications Products and the new reporting segment, the Securities
and Other Assets Investment. In EMS segment, there are also two main
groups of products, namely communication and non-communications
products whereas non-communication products mainly include appliances
and appliances control products and multimedia products. Distribution of
Communications Products segment represents the marketing and
distribution of communications products. The function of the Securities
and Other Assets Investment segment is to carry out effective financial
management.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue from EMS segment
decreased by 27.1% to HK$669.0 million (2015: HK$917.3 million), whereas
the revenue from Distribution of Communications Products segment
decreased by 12.8% to HK$79.6 million (2015: HK$91.3 million). The
Securities and Other Assets Investment segment contributed modest
revenue of approximately HK$0.2 million.

The decrease in the revenue of EMS segment was resulted mainly from the
decrease in sales of appliances & appliances control products of HK$150.2
million and gaming products of HK$39.0 million.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by 24.8% from HK$796.5 million in 2015 to
HK$598.8 million in 2016 corresponded to the level of revenue of the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by 29.3% from HK$212.1 million to HK$149.9 million,
while the gross profit margin remained stable at 20.0% (2015: 21.0%).
Apart from the slight gross loss of HK$1.0 million resulted from Securities
and Other Assets Investment segment, the gross profit of HK$150.9 million
was apportioned between EMS segment and Distribution of
Communications Products segment at 87.2% (2015: 88.2%) and 12.8%
(2015: 1.8%), respectively.
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BIRE R Mo

Other income

The other income increased from HK$13.7 million to HK$34.4 million
comparing with last year. The major components of the other income are
represented by the gain of HK$16.4 million arising from the amendment of
the terms of a licensing agreement under the Distribution of
Communications Products segment.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$49.9 million (2015: HK$55.4
million) accounted for approximately 6.7% in 2016 and 5.5% in 2015 of the
Group’s revenue. The decrease is mainly caused by the decrease in
commission expenses of HK$1.2 million and reduced direct distribution
cost of HK$2.4 million comparing with last year.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses of HK$131.4 million (2015: HK$76.6 million)
marked an increment of HK$54.8 million, mainly contributed by the
increase in legal and professional fees of HK$37.7 million and increase in
human resources cost of HK$11.6 million. The administrative expenses
accounted for approximately 17.6% in 2016 and 7.6% in 2015 of the Group’s
revenue.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by 70.7% from HK$43.7 million in
2015 to HK$74.6 million in 2016. The increase was mainly attributable to
the impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets of HK$25.6
million and fair value loss on an investment property of HK$18.3 million,
offset by the reduction in the level of bad debt written off of HK$5.5
million and the decrease in research & development expenses of HK$3.8
million.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest expenses on loans
from an independent third party, the imputed interest on loans from a
substantial shareholder and amortized interest on license fee. The Group’s
finance costs were approximately HK$4.2 million in 2016 and HK$6.1
million in 2015, representing approximately 0.6% of the revenue in each of
2016 and 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S Wm0

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expense represents amounts of income tax paid
by the Group, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC and U.S.A.. The Group had no tax
payable in other jurisdictions during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.

Discontinued operations

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into the disposal agreement (as
supplemented on 7 August 2015), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to sell the equity interests of a group of subsidiaries and associates
to Dragon Fortune International Limited, a former controlling shareholder
of the Company, at a consideration of HK$169,800,000 (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal was completed on 7 October 2015. The loss from the
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2015 was of
HK$79.4 million.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is of HK$82.6 million
(2015: HK$1.8 million). The Group’s net loss margin attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 was -11.0% (2015:
-0.1%).

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to
HK$4.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$39.2
million). The decrease in loss was mainly caused by the disposal of major
loss making distribution business units during the last year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows, the proceeds from the Company’s initial
public offering in January 2011 and borrowings.

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances amounted to
HK$208.3 million (2015: HK$441.2 million), representing an decrease of
HK$232.9 million from 2015. Respective sum of 9.0%, 56.9% and 34.0% of
the bank and cash balances was denominated in RMB, United States dollar
("USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) respectively whilst the remaining
0.1% was denominated in various currencies.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 2.21 times (2015:
2.66 times).

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of the interest-bearing
loans from an independent third party and non-interest bearing loans from
a substantial shareholder amounted to HK$20.0 million and HK$59.7
million, respectively. There is no borrowing as at 31 December 2015.

Cash flow

In 2016, HK$6.4 million was used in the operating activities, whilst HK$20.8
million and HK$90.0 million were generated from investing activities and
financing activities respectively. The cash inflow from financing activities
was related to the proceeds from other borrowings and loans from a
substantial shareholder. Net cash inflow from investing activities was
mainly arising from the net proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets amounting to HK$127.9 million and decrease in cash in
margin account of a brokerage firm of HK$333.9 million offset by the use
of proceeds in purchasing available-for-sale financial assets amounting to
HK$287.0 million as well as the refundable deposit of HK$140.0 million
paid for the proposed acquisition of a target group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Exchange risk exposure

The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group primarily enters into foreign
currency forward contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign
currency exchange rates, in particular, the exchange rate between Euro
("EUR”) and HKD as well as exchange rate between USD and RMB. The
Group categorises these instruments as being entered into for purposes
other than trading.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no outstanding forwards contacts
(2015: fair value of approximately HK$0.8 million. The contract amount of
the forward contracts is HKD equivalent of 26.2 million (equivalent to
EUR3Z million)).

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2016 amounted to HK$7.6 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$0.8 million. Both
the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly related to
the acquisition of plant and machinery and leasehold improvements.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, none of the Group’s assets was pledged.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favor of a supplier of an oversea subsidiary
(“"Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed under the Disposal, for a sum
of equivalent to HK$20.3 million (USD2.6 million) representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and that supplier.
The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the Company to
indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the Guarantee. Apart
from the above, the Group and Company did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Significant investments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available-for-sale investments of
HK$130.2 million (2015: Nil). All these investments represented equity
securities listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recognized approximately HK$33.7 million in the other comprehensive
income, of which HK$25.6 million was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss. No dividend income was received
during the year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of these investments.
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Significant available-for-sale investments held during the year ended 31
December 2016 and as at 31 December 2016 are as below:

s
% of total
Unrealised asset of Reasons for
gain/(losses) Fairvalue  the Group unrealised gain/
on fair value asat asat (losses) on fair
Stock Number of %of  change for Costof  31December  31December value change for
Company hame code Principal activities shares held ~ shareholdings theyear  acquisition 2016 2016 the year
EAZER
“B-AE
FRER RZB-XE t28
AV TZB  =t-R FRERERAYESE
k& iE0) hE 282580 KE  =t-B  2BEE ZRRRUE/(FR
k2 B #A otk W&/ (68) BA  2ATE  ZESR 2EA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B B
1 KPMHolding Limited 8027 Design, fabrication, installation 118,400,000 3Th 20,281 40,103 60,384 7.5%  Upward movements of
ERERARAA and maintenance of signage share price
and related products RELF
Rt RE - REREEES
RipBER
2 Imperial Pacific 1076 (Gaming and resort husiness, 489,060,000 0.3% (28,338) 80,178 51,840 6.5% Downward movements of
International including the development share price
Holdings Limited and operation of integrated RETH
BEATEER LR resort on the Island of
BRAT Saipan
EVRERNEE BEEER
eBEFERARRN
3 JinBaoBao 1239 Design, manufacture and sale of 200,000,000 2.0% (25,600)° 43,600 18,000 2.2% Downward movements of
Holdings Limited packaging products and share price
SEEERERLF structual components in the RETH
PRC and property investment
B HERAERR
ERRERENRNERE
(33,657) 163,881 130,224
* Re-classified to profit or loss during the year in view of prolonged decline of market prices * BERMIBERIBFESE  RERNEFHERIES -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 1,840 employees in
various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and PRC. In order to
attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth operation and
cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers competitive
remuneration packages, with reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications and experience.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. In
addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains strong
relationships with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with its
suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to its
customers so as to ensure sustainable development. The details of such
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance report on pages
34 to 42 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
mainland China and Hong Kong.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FER & HEAEZE
Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business ARNEBEHF BRI - CEEEREKAT R AT
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly B ERZN & B 2 5 B # s EEEEN F 2 RAR R~
or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The followings are the  BHEARZEMSFZ - A N AKEBNEN T ZE R
key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other N FBABIEZE - b N5 EI - @ FERE
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not B RZIZES BRIAIE N E BB HE A e B E
known to our Group or which may not be material now but could turn out ~ ZH)EfbER & NEARAFEZE -
to be material in the future.
Market Risks 5 &k
Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to TS EE IETISER (BNEX « X & AR(E) &
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices, like — By 2R N BT EEK EK B IEN 8L
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The management  HER - NEEEEBHZSAMEITEIE M E
of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure 12 - REREER B ASUREVEE 5 -
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Foreign Exchange Rates Risk SN L B
As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HKD, USD, RMB ~ HRAEEX ZFEUAT - E1 - ARBRE
and EUR, in view of the potential RMB and EUR exchange rate fluctuations,  JTEHE @ &R A R R E T8 E L iE R H 8 - A
the Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate its risks  EEP Y ErE A HT4 S 7 T BRI H INE K B
associated with foreign currency fluctuations when necessary. The use of FERER - AR R EBEBRYEESRMITAET
financial derivatives is closely monitored by management of the Company. EM{ER - AEE SR ESEETRN S RLHE
The Group would choose financial institutions with high credit rating as  {E#EBTE LR T AN FH - REBBEI
counter party when using derivative financial instruments. The Group  EHETEBHMINES F - BE N B BERINE L
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of — SHILE - NEB B EREINERER  ZERFE
other foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group  Z & hE KB IMNEER
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
Interest Rate Risk F 2R =k
For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses its ~ FtFIEBRERNKEMS @ NEBAFHREEE
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing this D HFXEAR - WEFRESRHEBSEFERIN
risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety of (KRG R EIE LA ©
means.
Liquidity Risk FREE S RS
Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its HREELEMBEEAEFBHNKERNEREES
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate S IREE » £ & T EIHR REEB O A seME -
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors EERARBE L AR NEFERIBLRE - I
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalentto  #EFEZ RS RIBESEEYKT - MR A
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects RNREBELFRHESNFERRSRERZFE -
of fluctuation in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our Group
are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be
taken.

Manpower and Retention Risk

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience and
competence which would meet the business objectives of our Group. Our
Group will provide attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates
and personnel.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the management remains cautiously optimistic about the
Group’s development prospects in view of the challenging global economy
and political uncertainties in some of the world’s major countries. The
Group will keep implementing its development strategy, strengthening the
foundation of its EMS and Distribution of Communications Products
business while grasping business opportunities in the medical and
healthcare industry.

Given the diversified clientele, the Group remains committed to solidifying
its market share of EMS and Distribution of Communications Products
business in different countries by addressing the needs of prominent
international consumer electronic brands. Meanwhile, the development of
other health care electronic products is at the final stage. Testing by and
registration with government authorities are expected to be completed in
the next year. These moves complement our EMS and Distribution of
Communications Products business in order to enhance marketing and
sales competencies and extend its market presence.

The PRC’s healthcare sector is actively growing with enormous potential
to develop in the coming decades. The management believes the reforms
and policies implemented by the PRC government underpinned by an
aging population, rising disposable incomes and expanding government
insurance coverage should continue to drive demand for quality
healthcare products and services in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Recently, the State Council released a blueprint for health reforms for the
next four years, whereby it plans to intensify medical reforms during the
13th Five-Year Plan while the National Health and Family Planning
Commission has issued a notice to implement the Two-Invoice system
across all public healthcare service providers nationwide. It is believed that
both policy initiatives can help promote the positive development of the
medical and healthcare industry in the mid-to-long term.

Through leveraging the resources and strengths that have underpinned its
development over the years, the Group remains well-positioned to seize
new business opportunities as they arise. The Group is committed to strive
for profitability by continuing to explore and identify suitable targets in
the medical and healthcare industry in order to generate better returns for
shareholders in the future.

ADVANCE TO ENTITY

Pursuant to Rule 13.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, a disclosure obligation arises
where an advance to an entity exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group.
Pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, details of the advance as
defined under Rule 13.15 of the Listing Rules which remained outstanding
as at 31 December 2016 were set out below.

On 29 June 2016, the Group paid a refundable amount of HK$140 million
as earnest money (the “Refundable Deposit”) after signing of the
memorandum of understanding for the proposed acquisition of a target
group from a vendor (the “Vendor”) on 22 June 2016 (the “MOU”). Details
can be found from the Company’s announcements dated 22 June 2016
and 29 June 20716.

B BB BEMARARODFNERLEER @ &
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title of
“chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code provision A.2.1
of the Code.

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company since 4 November 2015, is also responsible for overseeing
the general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Group. The roles
of the respective executive directors and senior management, who are in
charge of different functions complement the role of the chairman and
chief executive officer. The Board believes that this structure is conducive
to strong and consistent leadership enabling the Group to operate
efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply with
the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the
different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
the directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS rEe

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, two Non- HEEEHEMEREHNTES MEEHRTESTEL
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The =R IFITEEHENK - X =2 B EHT1T=
three Independent Non-executive Directors account for more than one- HEEEE€=H27 UL - FESHNKEWNT ¢
third of the Board. The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) Z=ORERE(EE)
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRESA
Non-executive Directors: HEBITESE -

Mr. Cao Yuyun TRELEE

Mr. Chan Kin Sang FRIE A ST A4
Independent Non-executive Directors: IR ITESE -
Mr. Bao Jingiao G H A

Mr. Wong Chun Hung =AM A

Mr. Leung Pok Man PEN LA

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section BEHNEFEFIERENRERFEIEZFIZAME
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 31to 33 in this annual SEFFIE] —f - EF@2ERBRESHE
report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and REEERKRE  IWHEAEB 2 £BERK  EHN
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the B HETRFEER - R EEFEHIEBETERE
Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each of the EHMN¥ERERETZIKER - HO ANEEERE
Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic H&HE - ARATIH L A#E— BB FHiREIE
planning experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group.  3.10(1) R (2) EEIRE - 2B IEMITESF T
The Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 310(1) and & E R85 313 5 E B AL ES] -

(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All Independent Non-

executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their

independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting forth
matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plans, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings are
sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the
meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views at
meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and still considers the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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Number of meetings attended/held

HESEHE BHYRYE
Annual general Extraordinary Board
meeting meeting meeting
Name of member BRBFEARE BRI EEEES
Executive Directors: HITESE -
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) EZOHLEE(EE) 1/1 3/3 4/4
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TRELEE 1/1 3/3 4/4
Non-executive Directors: HMITESE -
Mr. Cao Yuyun BER=LE 1/1 3/3 4/4
Mr. Chan Kin Sang (appointed on PREEE A (RZT—K
18 October 2016) F+ATNBERMT) 0/0 0/0 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTESF -
Mr. Bao Jingiao BB E 11 3/3 4/4
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EIEMEEE 1/1 3/3 4/4
Mr. Leung Pok Man RIE S E 1/1 3/3 4/4

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors committed to
participating in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of attending training or reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors have been provided with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements from time to
time. All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development programmes to develop and refresh their professional
knowledge and skills. All the existing Directors confirmed that they have
had suitable directors’ training through attendance of training courses and
seminars; or reading materials to refresh their knowledge and skills during
the Year.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

There is no service contract between the Company and each of the
Directors. Mr. Cao Yuyun, Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr.
Leung Pok Man are appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing
from 4 November 2015 whereas Mr. Chan Kin Sang is appointed for a fixed
term of three years commencing from 18 October 2076.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall
retire from office at least once every three years and shall include those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation of
their functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above
committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010. The
Audit Committee had three members comprising three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Chairman), Mr. Bao
Jingiao and Mr. Leung Pok Man. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, the composition and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the Listed Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the Board on 24
February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the Revised Code, a copy of
which is posted to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2016 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters and
management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and

. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
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The details of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2016 and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of member

ZEEN T R"FAHGRZIFBEREK
(@R F = EHFT

Number of meetings

attended/held
HEEE8E, BHEE8A

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Chairman) EHEM A (FE)
Mr. Bao Jingiao S E
Mr. Leung Pok Man P

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010. The
Remuneration Committee had three members comprising three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao
(Chairman) , Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to the Revised
Code. The terms of reference are currently available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management and to
make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director
shall participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration. The
remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.
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Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2016 to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below.

Name of member

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) S A (F/E)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EEMEAE
Mr. Leung Pok Man RS AE

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. To comply with the amended Code which
became effective on 1 September, 2013, the Board (on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee) amended the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee to adopt a policy concerning
diversity in the board of directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include the making of
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the Directors. The specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are currently available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company remains committed to
meritocracy in the Boardroom, which requires a diverse and inclusive
culture where the Directors believe that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment where bias,
discrimination and harassment on any matter are not tolerated.
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The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2016:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2016 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the reappointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman),

Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man.

Two Nomination Committee meetings were held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

Name of member

E-RFT-A=+—RILFE REZEE
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STERENT ¢
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© ORHEEZEEMENE R

o PRBUTERBL Y -

REZESH-BBEUFNTESEK  DHIR
WAL (XF)  HBHEEERREELE -

REZREY
KT -

BHRMAE®  SKENERLE

Number of meetings

attended/held
HEES8E, BHEeE8E

Mr. Bao Jingiao (Chairman) S E (F/E)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung SR A
Mr. Leung Pok Man PEX A

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities for
the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report
contained in the Annual Report. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services provided by
the external auditor is included in note 13 to the financial statements in the
Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non- audit
services is approximately HK$0.19 million.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of system of internal controls and risk management within the Group. The
system is set up to address key business risks of failure to meet corporate
objectives and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The purpose of such system is to manage
and control risks properly, but not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of internal controls and risk management, including
financial, operational and compliance controls on annual basis. The Board
considered the system is effective and adequate. The review has also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in respect of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. The Board ensures
the existing resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their
training programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group, the
Board has appointed external independent professionals to perform
internal audit functions. As approved by the Audit Committee, the external
independent professionals made assessment on various business and
operation risks of the Group. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings
from the external independent professionals periodically and discussed
the recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the external
auditors and external independent professionals during their audit.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”), and any information
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules or any inside
information required to be disclosed under the Inside Information
Provisions should be announced immediately.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to as an
extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities
and direction of the Group, information about the Group has been
provided to the shareholders through financial reports and
announcements. The Company has established its own corporate website
www.chinahealthcare.com.hk as a channel to facilitate effective
communication with its shareholders and the public. The Company will
continue to enhance communications and relationships with its
shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@1143.com.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Constitutional Documents

During 2016, the Company has not made any changes to its Memorandum
and Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang, aged 43, has ample experience in corporate
operation and management. He was a director of Gosun Holding Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Hubei Landing Holding Co., Limited) (shares of which
are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000971) (“Gosun”)
from August 2012 to December 2014. Mr. Gong has been the chairman and
general manager of a local property developing company in the PRC since
May 2014.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 44, is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting and financing. Mr. Lee currently serves
as an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian Development Group
Limited (stock code: 474), Clear Lift Holdings Limited (stock code: 1341)
and Jin Bao Bao Holdings Limited (stock code: 1239), which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116), Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 8153) and Focus Media Network Limited (stock code: 8112),
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
He was an independent non-executive director of China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Group Limited (stock code: 726) from December 2013 to
February 2015 and King Stone Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663)
("King Stone”) from January 2012 to April 2013.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cao Yuyun, aged 55, had worked in various positions, including deputy
general manager of head office sales department, deputy branch manager
and general manager of operation center, at Agricultural Development
Bank of China for over 10 years until May 2011. He then joined Anhui
Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd. ( Z & SR E B AR A 7)) (“Anhui
Landing”) in May 2011 and currently he is a director and vice president of
Anhui Landing. Mr. Cao was also a director and the chairman of Gosun
from October 2013 to December 2014.
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Mr. Chan Kin Sang, aged 64, is the senior partner of Messrs. Peter K. S. Chan &
Co., Solicitors and Notaries and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in laws in 1979 and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1982, he was also admitted as a Notary Public in 1997 and was
appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2000.

Mr. Chan now acts as an independent non-executive director of several Hong
Kong and overseas listed companies, namely China Taifeng Beddings Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 873), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619)
and China Fortune Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 290) listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and Luxking Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: BKK) listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST"). Mr. Chan also acts as a non-executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: P36) listed on SGX-ST; and acts as a
director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication Co., Ltd, Shanxi (Stock
Code: 600234) listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In the past three years, Mr. Chan has acted as independent non-executive
director of People’s Food Holdings Limited (Stock Code: PO5) listed on SGX-
ST from February 2001 to January 2014, Munsun Capital Group Limited
(formerly known as China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Limited)
(Stock Code: 1194), Tianjin TEDA Biomedical Engineering Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8189) and Runway Global Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1520) listed on the Stock Exchange from June 2004 to October 2016,
from May 2013 to December 2016 and from October 2015 to December 2016,
respectively. Mr. Chan also acted as non-executive director of Combest
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8190) listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange from June 2011 to January 2017.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bao Jingiao, aged 51, was graduated from Anhui University with
research study in Civil Law 1988 and Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences
with the Master Degree in Law Department in 1988. He is a lawyer gualified
to practise in the PRC. Mr. Bao is the founder and partner of Anhui Chengyi
Law Firm since 2000. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Landing International Development Limited which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 582).
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Mr. Wong Chun Hung, aged 43, was graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years’
experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Mr. Wong has been the
director of B&C Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited since December
2005. He is also an independent non-executive director of Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited (stock code: 767) which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
China Household Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited (stock code: 692)), Tech Pro Technology Development Limited
(stock code: 3823) until June 2011 and January 2011 respectively. He was a
non-executive director of King Stone (stock code: 663) until March 2013
and was also an executive director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code: 8022))
until December 2013.

Mr. Leung Pok Man, aged 48, was graduated from York University in
Toronto, Canada with a bachelor degree in arts. He has over 15 years’
experience in sales management & business development in the industry
relating to information technology and audio visual systems. He is
currently the sales and business development consultant of a trading
company of information technology and network products and mobile
aCcessories.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In November 2015, Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry has resigned, and Mr. Lee Chi
Hua Joshua was appointed as the company secretary of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in the sub- section headed “Directors” in
this section.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present this report to demonstrate its efforts
toward sustainable development. The report has been prepared in
accordance with the standards set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited in its Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide, which covers the subject areas of environmental protection,
workplace quality, operating practices and community investment.

This report focuses on our EMS business conducted by our subsidiaries
with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou (“Guangzhou
Factory”). We will continue to improve our data collection mechanism and
may widen our scope of disclosure in the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable development
and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and Regulations relating to
environmental protection, we endeavor to maintain green manufacturing
processes and office operational practices in order to minimize the
adverse environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and economy
of the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated to contribute to
the environmental, the third pillar of the sustainability and following these
principles to minimize our adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and Regulations
from all levels and functions of the organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal requirements (if
any) of the relevant interested parties; the person or organization
that can affect, be affected by, like shareholders and/or stakeholders
including customers, suppliers, communities, regulators, non-
governmental organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and understood

. Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System to adopt
systematic approach to effectively protect the environment and
respond to changing environmental conditions in balance with
Socio-economic needs

. Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the environmental-
friendly facilities, equipments and instruments that are operating

safely, effectively and more efficient

. Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments, educational
training, and enhancing staff’s environmental protection awareness
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. Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into our business
strategic visions and competitive implication by aligning them with
business priorities and decision making

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by complying with all
the applicable Regional Laws and Regulations for our business activities in
PRC, maintaining the Guangzhou Factory are 1ISO-14001 Environmental &
OHSAS-18001 Occupational Health & Safety management system certified
since 2009 & 2010 respectively. It is the Group’s ambition to sustain
compliance obligation, safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free as well as packaging materials
recycling. The Group’s subsidiary, Guangzhou Telefield Ltd. demonstrated
a high commitment to a cleaner production plant and being certified since
2010 within the second 5-year-span accreditation cycle as the “Hong Kong
— Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner (Manufacturing)” jointly issued
by both Environment Bureau, The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and The Economic and Information Commission of
Guangdong Province.

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental targets into
business decision making, we believe that protecting the environment is
always the crucial concerns for our manufacturing nature business. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant standards, rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection in respect of our business activities.

Emission

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the possible adverse
impact of its EMS business on the environmental, and considers
environmental protection mindset an important obligation during its
production and operating activities. The Group’s major environmental
aspects mainly relates to energy consumptions and wastes generation,
nevertheless, the impact to natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

Waste gas

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) is the major organic waste which is an
air pollutant being produced during the paint spraying process for our
products. Therefore, the governance of industrial waste gases containing
VOCs is the main focus and control area for our product fabrication
pProcesses.

Apart from the direct emissions of VOCs, our greenhouse gases emissions
are indirectly, principally resulting from electricity consumed at the factory
and offices as well as from business travel by employees.

The Guangzhou Factory has established a filtering system to filter the
polluted air before discharging to the surrounding.
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Waste water

The Group has a strong focus on the water conservation, and therefore
tries to prevent water pollution which is mainly generated from workers’
living activities. The Guangzhou Factory promotes sewage bio-chemical
treatment facility and water reuse, so as to reduce the amount of water
consumption and ensure water is used sustainably. We build our own
sewage treatment facilities in the factory to undertake sewage treatment
before discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is used for
irrigation in staff living quarters.

Hazardous waste management

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible way and
strives to optimize the use of resources. The Guangzhou Factory has
established a comprehensive hazardous waste management system and
carries out disposal of hazardous waste in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations. There is a storage area in the factory for storing
hazardous solid waste. The factory also works with institutions which are
qualified to dispose of hazardous waste.

Non-hazardous waste

Non-hazardous waste from the Guangzhou Factory operation includes
packaging materials, paper for office use and sales and marketing
purposes. Packaging materials mainly include cardboard boxes for
product wrap up. We consider the principle of environmental friendly in
our packaging design, and select more eco-friendly packaging materials
and reducing the weight of materials used for our products.

The Group continues to practice paper saving initiatives, such as default
double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have environmentally friendly
photocopying habit, and separated collection of waste paper for effective
recycling.

Use of Resources

Global warming is one of the biggest environmental challenges we are
facing today. In light of this, the Guangzhou Factory adheres to the
concept of energy conservation and emission reduction leads to green
production. Most of the energy consumed during production is electric
power. We aim to improve our energy utilization rate to achieve low-
carbon practices and emission reduction throughout our production and
operation, and strive to save electricity consumptions.
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The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for energy saving
management which include in-house rules and regulations for both office
and factory employees to follow. The implementation of policy is the
follow-up plan after the Third-party Certifications upon the 1ISO-14001 and
OHSAS-18001 management Standards. An environmental management
team is developed and authorized to set up the targets, indices for
emissions level as well as developing management programmes. General
affairs department is responsible for carrying out the monitoring work for
effective uses of resources.

We have implemented a range of measures designed to reduce emissions
and cut down its consumption of energy and natural resources. We also
promote a paperless office and encourage staff to reduce electricity and
water usage in their daily work to create a green office. To reduce
remarkably the consumption of electrical energy, the Guangzhou factory
has gradually replaced the traditional lighting tubes with energy-saving
tubes that enjoy higher efficiency and longer life cycle. The factory has
applied push-button taps instead of screwdriver faucet in order to reduce
water wastage. We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for production and non-production equipment which aims at
enhancing the optimal use of machineries and equipments. Hence,
achieving the least electricity consumption and greenhouse gas emissions.
We encourage staff to print paper on both sides and reuse waste paper
and used envelopes. Waste paper recycling bins are placed in office to
regularly recycle used paper, and employees are encouraged to read and
send files electronically to reduce printing. In addition, a number of energy
conservation promotional banners and posters were post up in various
places to remind workers. Through catchy slogan and posters, everyone
paid high attention to environmental protection and resource
conservation.

SOCIAL COMMITMENT
Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that quality talents are important assets of an
enterprise and also the cornerstone for sustaining corporate development.
The Group’s practices and policies with respect to: (i) compensation and
dismissal; (ii) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working hours; (iv) rest
periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-discrimination; and
(viii) welfare and other benefits have complied with the Labor law of the
People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has more than 1,800 staff members. We are committed to
providing a fair and competitive compensation package to attract and
retain quality talents, in the form of a basic salary, incentives bonus,
mandatory provident fund, and other fringe benefits.
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The Group strictly complies with International Labour Standards
and the government’s “Provision on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor”
K2 IEERZETED). In terms of recruitment, we strictly prohibit the
employment of juveniles under 16 years old. During recruitment, we
stringently review and verify the authenticity of identity card information
to avoid employing child labour that could be resulted from forged
identity cards borrowed from others.

The Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment discrimination
and occupational discrimination, and strives to establish harmonious
labour relationships. We protect the rights of staff in terms of providing
rest and leave days according to relevant governmental laws and
regulations.

Health and Safety

The Group always places great emphasis on occupational health and
safety working conditions for staff. We strictly comply with the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ({FFEE A R £ FE Z &4
EE 7% )) and other relevant laws and regulations. We have set up policies
and procedures in regulating occupational health and safety to provide
on-the-job training for the employees and avoid industrial accidents.

The Group carries out safety management training for production
management staff and further promotes the standardised management of
corporate safety production.

The Guangzhou factory has equipped with suitable fire-fighting facilities
like fire extinguishers. Designated staff would conduct inspection from
time to time so as to ensure the exit passageway clear and unblocked. In
addition, we organise fire drills from time to time. At the same time, we
continuously improve our workshop sites to reduce workload intensity for
frontline staff and improve the working environment.

The Guangzhou factory had obtained Quality Management System
Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management System
Certification (1ISO14001) formulated by the International Organisation for
Standardisation (“ISO”) and they were certified, thus effectively
guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe and stable working
environment. Daily operations are inspected by relevant departments,
according to the occupational health and safety requirements of the
respective company. Any non-compliance will also be identified and
rectified on a timely basis.
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Development and Training

The Group places strong emphasis on the career development of
individual employees. Employees are encouraged to keep abreast of the
changing world and pursue continuing educations, so as to cope with the
rapidly changing society and meet the evolving corporate development
needs. The Group encourages its employees to participate in individual
continuing education programs which are related to their job duties, with
a view to strengthening the professional career training of its staff teams,
promoting professional expertise of management teams and stimulating
the potential abilities of employees. In addition, in order to enable new
staff to fit into the Company and comprehend the company policy and
corporate culture as soon as possible, the Group provides basic orientation
training for all the new staff and provides our management personnel and
employees with on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to intensify its
efforts to promote staff training programmes. This helps provide the
necessary protection for talent reserves for corporate development.

Supply Chain Management

The principal raw materials and components used in Guangzhou factory
production include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and battery. At present, the
majorities of manufacturing materials are purchased domestically. The
factory typically procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers. In order to ensure that the raw
materials and components procured are of the requisite standards, The
Purchasing Department is responsible of procurement of raw materials,
and manages sourcing for our supply chain. An approved vendor list is
maintained for each of its principal raw materials and components and the
vendor list is reviewed periodically.

To enhance supply chain management, we have formulated management
systems and regulate the supplier selection process to systematically
evaluate and qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter our supply system and become our qualified suppliers, thereby
facilitating our stable procurement development. According to our
“Standard Operating Procedure” and quality management system relating
to the supplier management process, we carefully manage and select
qualified suppliers and carry out regular evaluations to safeguard the
quality of our materials and to ensure our product delivery schedules,
establishing a foundation for providing quality products to our customers.
Customers are becoming more concerned about environmental issues,
and stress us the importance of using environmental-friendly materials.
We will continue to communicate these demands to our suppliers,
strengthen our cooperation with suppliers regarding their ability to deliver
environmental-friendly materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials,
and work with them to produce societal benefits.
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Product responsibility

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and providing
quality services that consistently meet or even exceed our customers’
expectations. The Group has placed a strong emphasis on quality
assurance and has adopted stringent quality assurance procedures at
different stages of its business operation including the pre-production
process, the procurement of raw materials and components and the
monitoring of production processes and the inspections of finished
products to ensure the qualities of its products.

The Group’s production facilities have been ISO-9001 quality management
system certified in 1998 for different families of products. In addition,
Guangzhou Factory was 1SO-13485 Certified in 2008 for Medical Devices
and ISO/TS-16949 Certified for Automotive products in 2011 too.

The Guangzhou Factory has a team of more than 300 staff who are
responsible for quality control and quality assurance. It also has an
independent quality assurance department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the production processes from the raw materials
and components procurement stages to product delivery stages to ensure
that the products can meet the required national standards and certain
industry standards applicable to such products. Industry standards for
products adopted by the factory including:

(i) IPC-A-610D Acceptability of Electronics Assemblies for PCBA
workmanship requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directives 2002/95/
EC); and

(iii)  REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of
Chemical substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various international safety
standards including:

(i) FCC standards — product standards which are applicable to
telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;
(iii)  CSA standards — standards for product safety and performance;

(iv)  China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory certification system
concerning product safety in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health or environmental
requirements.
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Intellectual property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our intellectual property.
In addition to highlighting and protecting intellectual property and
ensuring we respect the intellectual property of others, we protect the fair
competition environment, and comply with industry standards and criteria.
During the year, the Group has not experienced any infringement of its
intellectual property rights by third parties. Also, the Group was not
involved in any material litigation or legal proceedings for violation of
intellectual property rights and there was no material violation of the
same.

Customer relationship management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an enterprise’s competitiveness,
and we continuously try to improve on this. We have a customer-oriented
focus and strive to provide quality products and services by continuously
hearing what our customers are looking for. We collect customers’
feedbacks relating to our manufactured products which are used as
important references in our constant efforts to improve product quality
and promote customer satisfaction. We are always trying to improve, and
address complaints or feedback quickly to resolve any issues. We have
Customer Services Department to maintain ongoing communication with
customers and ensure we can provide excellent service. We put great
emphasis on protecting customer privacy, and implement stringent
internal management for marketing activities to safeguard customer
information security.

Anti-Corruption policy

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and corporate integrity,
anti-corruption has become one of the main corporate business ethics
principles for many of the world’s premier enterprises. We advocate
honest operation and fair competition, and require that our staff comply
with the national laws and regulations, as well as the Group’s regulations
and systems. To promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anticorruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

As part of our efforts to make anticorruption an important corporate
management activity, we set up whistleblowing channels to help prevent
irregularities. All staff must comply with the Group’s business code of
conduct, which aims to prevent corruption from a system perspective. We
also continue to improve our internal control and monitoring system. If
problems are identified, we take immediate action, and have a zero
tolerance approach to corruption in order to prevent irregularities.
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Community Investment

In terms of community involvement, the Group continues to run a
corporate social responsibility programme, in which it encourages
employees to participate in community services and contribute to care
needs of the community. As part of its efforts to promote education, one
of the subsidiaries of the Group made a donation of RMB200,000 to the
Student Subsidy Program organised by Guangzhou Baiyun District and
contributed RMB90,000 to the educational fund for supporting the
education of our factory workers’ children in 2016. The Group also
sponsored our employees to participate the Million Walk organised by the
Community Chest.

This year, one of the subsidiaries of the Group was once again awarded

the “Caring Company” designation by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our approach and contribution to the community.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

In order to better reflect the Group’s upcoming business strategy to shift
its business focus on the medical and healthcare industry, the Company
changed its English name from “Telefield International (Holdings) Limited”
to “China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited” and the dual foreign name
of the Company be changed from “FRZBEIEER A A" to “EERE
BE %% E AR QA" These changes were approved at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 4 February 2016. The certificate
of incorporation on change of name certifying the registration of change
of English name of the Company issued by the Registry of Companies in
Cayman Islands was issued on 16 February 2016, and the Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company certifying the new names of the Company have been registered
in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) was issued on 11 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
OVERVIEW

Details of (i) business review (ii) principal risks and uncertainties and (iii)
future development of the Group’s business are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties” and “Prospects”
sections under “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 182 to 183 of this annual report. Particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with each
of its key stakeholders.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 63 to 67.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on pages 182 to
183. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements
in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$509,000 (2015: HK$654,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the loss attributable to shareholders
of the Company amounted to HK$82.6 million. The Company’s reserves
available for distribution comprise share premium and accumulated
losses/retained profits. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, the Company’s share premium account may be applied by the
Company in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no distributable reserve that
was available for distribution to the shareholders.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Connected transaction

During the Year, there was no transaction which need to be disclosed as
connected transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction

The master electronics manufacturing services agreement dated 7 August
2015 (as supplemented on 7 September 2015) entered into between Noble
Treasure Holdings Limited and Telefield Holdings Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in relation to the provision of various
wireless communication products, audio equipment products and other
relevant electronic products and ancillary parts and services (including
sourcing and procurement, production and after-sales services) by the
Company and its subsidiaries after the completion of the Disposal
(“"Remaining Group”) to the group of subsidiaries disposed of by the
Company upon the Disposal remained effective for a period commencing
from the date of the completion of the Disposal to 31 December 2016.
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During the Year, the Remaining Group has entered into the sales of goods
transaction with the disposed subsidiaries as follows:

RAFER SfRTEEEDHEMNBARRMLLZ
HEERX ST :

HK$
BT
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited BEBEBRAERAT 9,568,542
STI Technology Limited SEMEAERAT 7,522,719
Telefield Gaems Limited Telefield Gaems Limited 179,688
Total st 17,270,949

The aggregate amount of transactions above was within the approved
annual cap of HK$18 million.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and have confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

®

()

(i)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The auditor’s letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

b. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditor to believe that the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 9 September 2015.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 61% of the Group’s sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 26.9%. Total purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 21.8% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices.
DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cao Yuyun

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (appointed on 18 October 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bao Jingiao
Mr. Wong Chun Hung
Mr. Leung Pok Man
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Gong Shaoxiang and Mr. Leung Pok Man will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Furthermore, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Chan Kin Sang is subject to retirement at the first
annual general meeting after his appointment and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Bao Jingiao, Mr. Wong Chun Hung and Mr. Leung Pok Man, and as at
the date of this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages 31
to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFO")) were held by the Directors and chief executives of the
Company which are required (i) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of part
XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Company contained in the LIsting Rules to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Director is a director or employee of
a company which has an interest or a short position in the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Capacity

3%

Beneficial Owner
EnEEA

Power Port Holdings Limited
(“Power Port”) (Note 1)
Power Port Holdings Limited

(TPower Port ) (HtzE1)

Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang”) Held by controlled
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Percentage of
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Number of Long or Capital of the
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FEROEBE HFEIRE BAREDE

1,516,340,000  Long 30.6%
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1,516,340,000  Long 30.6%
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Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu") (Note 2)
et ((Rrt])(HiE2)

China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (“China Huarong”)
(Note 3, 4)

FP B gl B PR S AR B BR A A
(TR EIZER ) (f17F3 - 4)

Empire Group Global Limited
(“"Empire Group”) (Note 3)
Empire Group Global Limited
(TEmpire Group 1) (K& 3)

Partners Special Investments Fund
SP2 (“SP2") (Note 4, 5)

Partners Special Investments Fund
SP2 ([sP2))(KtaE4 -+ 5)

Azaleas Investment Holding Limited
(“Azaleas”) (Note 4)

Azaleas Investment Holding Limited
([Azaleas]) (Htzt 4)

PH Investment Management Limited
(“PH Investment”) (Note 5)

PH Investment Management Limited
(TPH Investment ) (#f7E5)

Bullion Riches Limited
(“Bullion Riches”) (Note 5)

Bullion Riches Limited
(T'Bullion Riches |) (#f#5)

Capacity

&1

Interest of spouse
e S A =

Held by controlled
corporation

RRIEGEERA

Beneficial Owner
EmfEA A

Beneficial Owner
EmfEAA

Held by controlled
corporation

RRIEGEERA

Investment manager
TEKE

Investment manager
RELKE

Number of
shares held

RO BE

1,516,340,000

1,457,000,000

718,600,000

738,400,000

738,400,000

738,400,000

738,400,000

Percentage of
issued Share

Long or Capital of the

short position Company
AR ATBBIT

HERAE BABS L

Long 30.6%

e

Long 29.4%

[S=)

Long 14.5%

[S=)

Long 14.9%

[S=)

Long 14.9%

[S=)

Long 14.9%

[S=)

Long 14.9%

[S=)
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Capacity

3

Partners Financial Holdings Limited
(“Partners Financial”) (Note 5)

BEREFIZERBRA A ([HERERE])
(K17E5)

Investment manager
WEKE

Bright Hope Global Investments Limited Investment manager
(“Bright Hope™) (Note 5) KERKIE

Bright Hope Global Investments Limited
(I Bright Hope l) (B15E5)

Winnex International Investments
Limited (“Winnex”) (Note 5)
KIGEIBRIEEBR AR ([K1E])

Investment manager
TEKE

(HfaES5)
Zhang Yi (Note 5) Investment manager
SRER(MALS5) B e
Cheng Kin Ming (Note 5) Investment manager
ER5Z=RA (H15F5) WEKE
Notes:

1. 1,516,340,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang.

2. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Yang. Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested in

the same number of Shares in which Mr. Yang is interested.

3. 718,600,000 ordinary shares are held by Empire Group, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by China Huarong.

Percentage of
issued Share

Number of Long or Capital of the

shares held  short position Company

HARQAT BT

FIERAEBE HElXR &=

738,400,000 Long 14.9%
HE

738,400,000 Long 14.9%
e

738,400,000  Long 14.9%
[S=)

738,400,000  Long 14.9%
[S=)

738,400,000  Long 14.9%
IS~

Wit -

1. 1,516,340,000 f% & 8% (3 Power Port 358 * &% AR AR
EBRLESFMRIZARAR  HE2BEETRN
BINEAERH -

2, FRERMELEZRE - REBHFRPRGED - Rt
AR AP A A e ek 2 AR R BB AR o B ek o

3. 718,600,000 A% i 38 A% B Empire Group & * &2 A AR
RBEZHSTMATL - E2HEETRARTEER
A -

738,400,000 ordinary shares are held by SP2, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Azaleas, which in turn is
wholly controlled by China Huarong.

PH Investment is the investment manager of SP2 and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares owned by SP2 under the SFO. PH Investment is wholly
controlled by Bullion Riches, which in turn is wholly controlled by Partners Financial.
Partners Financial is held by Winnex and Bright Hope with 50% and 44% interest,
respectively. Winnex is wholly controlled by Cheng Kin Ming whereas Bright Hope is
wholly controlled by Zhang Yi.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEXEEE R AT

738,400,000 f% & imA% B SP2#5 A + 5% A A A TR T I
HEFMAT - H2IEBITRANE Azaleas 1558 +
Azaleas Rl BIEERLIZE &I o

PH Investment & SP2 Z I & /832 - AL IRIEFEH K HE
16 61 4% R B RSP2EE R 2 IR 1) B % - PH
Investment & Bullion Riches 2 & £ fll + i Bullion Riches
Al RS R 2 AR - RS E D B h k18 & Bright
Hope #8 50% K& 44% #E 2 o kG ESERR 2 & H] -
Bright Hope R 862 & 12l o
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company nor their respective associates is considered to have interests in
a business that competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than those businesses
where the Directors have been appointed or were appointed as Directors
to represent the interests of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time or part-
time), Directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from the date on which the Scheme was adopted, subject to
the early termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in
respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share on the date of grant of the option provided always that for the
purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the Company has
been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue
price shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within the
period before the Listing Date.

ESBERMNEFZER

AR BRAFEAREAE R ERERNEERE
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Mo HARE - BER QRS E AN B AR %
FIZAMEARBER LML BEESAR
EREMEABRESIL SRR -

B A

RAFER  BEEEHARINERRRABS
BEZBMBALTHR AR EALEEBE KN
BB EF R (EFEREXE
EZEREFURKAR RS 2 EBHIN F
AR o

AT S

BRI RBEAERAL  MKFRHEEINEZR
NREBAEBELES - ARFAER_E—F
T+t A=+t BB R RABRER 8 (5
g2 Bt EESEREIEDNBRESEN
Rz - M (Eh ek AREEMEER (ZRkGR
B E2% BHE - KHAER- DEE - 08/
HEm R BF  BEEHIRBHERE
AR - DARRBBAR D - SHEIHE R AME BI H AR
et T EAFERER  EARIEFSIMHE 2 F
FREBRTAE UL

REBhENZBRERELEREZAN(RRE
BR)EFERRER - ARAREARBER
REFRARBRERARBN1.00ETT - 3
RIBET IR R E B ER R D RBE -
HeiEmEEeEEBM2EE - BENSER
TH&=EE ()RR BERER L B HER AT
FHBERPRAOWTIE © (i) B EEIBRE
RE AR AERS B EBZMET A RERMR
BT E ¢ R G B R BB AR IR I B HIEY
HE R ERBEMS » WARRRBE AT
Z ETHELRAERS A - #TESEELD
BHRT B E AR S A2 WHE -

Annual Report F ik 2016

53



.....

54

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERRHE

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015. In addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 Ef@ A ¥ EEER AT
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AUDITOR =B

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong A BBHRACHTREE (F8) @t EBA
Kong who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment T - FIREE (FE) @M EHBTBEE - 1

at the forthcoming annual general meeting. AERTEENEERIBFT ARG FEEET -
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEZTE

Gong Shaoxiang #OH

Chairman *FE

Hong Kong BE

28 March 2017 —E—+F=A=-1+N\H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B %A RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA HEALTHCARE ENTERPRISE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 63 to 181, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code of Ethics”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ BEAE X £ E AR AT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Renegotiation of terms on usage of RCA License Rights

2. Estimate of initial fair value of shareholder loans and their effective
interest rate

FRHERT =R

MREASEARBRMANEXHE - RANK
PEABME 2 GEPBRREFTTRREELZLS
B BEL G M RRBEETET LM
ERTARERELEFE  MIASLFFRE
REBIER - BT ZBARBEFFER

1 BRI RCARFFFHE 2 fE A &K

2. EABRRERZE A FEREERMX
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Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

1.

Renegotiation of terms on usage of RCA License Rights

Refer to note 23(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has renegotiated with the licensor and
changed the terms of payment of an existing intangible
asset — RCA License Rights during the year. The changes
included certain outstanding license rights payable being
waived and reduction of annual minimum guaranteed
license rights payment from year 2016 to 2018. The
license rights payable’s new carrying amount after the
above changes was a fair value determined by reference
to the revised future annual minimum guaranteed license
rights payments discounted at an appropriate rate. As a
result of above modification of terms of payment of an
existing intangible asset, adjustments were made to the
cost of RCA License Rights and the license rights payable,
and the difference was recorded as a gain on license
rights contract amendment amounting to HK$16,369,000
(note 10).

The determination of the fair value of license rights
payable after the changes required significant
management judgement. The application of accounting
standards to a significant modification of the payment
terms of an existing license contract warranted additional
audit focus.

B F RCA KT Z E R IRRX
SZHER B M IRRMFE 23(b) ©

FA - AKECEREAENAH  YECBUEREE
WEBERCAFRZNFIER - BRARBREREKE
THASNZFAREMNR KEE-_Z-—XRE-F
—N\FHERERBRFRFE - 8 LdENRR - %5
AHERN R HREER/SERET 2 RKRERE
Rt F B (CREETRERNR)REETZAFE.
BRI LR SR A B B & 2 N IRSETTER - #
BETRE RCARFFFREE A RS RARE R M 5 ETTHE -
ZFA 316,369,000 /8 T2 ARSI RKFFTHES KER] 2
Yok (BEEE10)

B2tk GEEERAEENRZATER  TEEE
BELERHE - BRARBLEBRERHTEA ORI
RIEMEAER 2 @ ERIA REZ MBA B -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMETETROUMEEEREETSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation
of fair value of license rights payable under renegotiated
terms and the related accounting standards application
included:

= Evaluating the independence and expertise of the
professional valuer;

— Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;
— Assessing the appropriateness of the discount
rate used with the assistance of our internal

valuation specialists;

— Reviewing the terms set out in the relevant
amendment contract; and

— Assessing the accounting treatment of

modification of payment terms of an existing
intangible asset.

AL E IR B R A IR P AR E 2 R R AR IR R
ZAHEZ A BITZRF R

—  EERGEGRTEIREE
—  PERERRRTRE

- ERMABEEEEBY THERAARER

BHEE
—  EBMERERENMIZIER R

- FHEEREMRAENEE ZNRGERZ &R
BRIRTTE ©
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HEETEE BERETETSNARERERAEE

2. Estimate of initial fair value of shareholder loans and
their effective interest rate

Refer to note 35 to the consolidated financial statements ~ Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation

and accounting policies 4(q). of the initial fair value of the shareholder loans included:
During the reporting period, the Group has borrowed  — Evaluating the independence and expertise of the
non-interest bearing loans with principal amounts of professional valuer;

HK$70 million from a substantial shareholder. The loans

were recognised at fair value at inception and —  Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective and

interest method. The initial fair value of the loans was

measured as the present value of the loan repayments —  Assessing the appropriateness of the discount
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for rate used with the assistance of our internal
a similar loan with a similar credit rating. The market rate valuation specialists.

of interest for similar loans was not observable and
management estimated the discount rate with the
assistance of an independent professional valuer.

The determination of the initial fair value of the loans and
their effective interest rate required significant
management judgement.

2. MEHARRERZOBAFEREERFE

2R MBRRMEIS REFTHR 4 A - B EREERRER 2 ME R FHEZEFTRTZ
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L

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the 2016 annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

] _ N\ 7/

PN
ShE 12 m

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

= —F

NEFZH=+—HIFFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Continuing operations BEKSEEK
Revenue WA 8 748,749 1,008,561
Cost of sales SHE R A (598,835) (796,467)
Gross profit EF 149,914 212,094
Other income E A 10 34,419 13,687
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEFAT (49,943) (55,365)
Administrative expenses 1THEA (131,420) (76,573)
Other operating expenses H &R (74,637) (43,729)
(Loss)/profit from operations R (BE),wmH (71,667) 50,114
Finance costs mhE Ak A 11 (4,297) (6,081)
Share of loss of a joint venture DI —MEEE D EEIE - 117)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (B518), T F (75,964) 43,916
Income tax expense FiSfiFA = 12 (11,074) (5,549)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BEREEKS
continuing operations FE(FR),uF 13 (87,038) 38,367
Discontinued operations EBRIEEEETE
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEREER 2 FEEER
operations 16 - (79,432)
Loss for the year FEBE (87,038) (41,065)
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 Forthe year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE —ZE— NF1+_A=+—HIFF
2016 2015
—E-hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
Attributable to: AT &G :
Owners of the Company AARER A (82,646) (1,844)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR M o (4,392) (39,221)
(87,038) (41,065)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (BER) &BF 18 (Restated)
(/2E%)
From continuing and discontinued REFELEEBRR
operations B4R | T
Basic (cents per share) R (R (1.668) (0.037)
Diluted (cents per share) s (SRS N/ATEA (0.037)
From continuing operations REFELEETS
Basic (cents per share) AR (FRBM) (1.668) 0.818
Diluted (cents per share) B5E (FRE L) N/ATREA 0.815
China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Are B M E M E WS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss for the year FEER (87,038) (41,065)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wz
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEN S EEEmAEE -
profit or l0ss:
Gain on property revaluation VI B AR 19 668 4,236
Deferred tax credit/(charge) from MEEHIWEBIEN
gain/loss on property revaluation EEBEE R, (ZH) 38 66 (545)
734 3,691
[tems that may be reclassified to AEF T E B AIEE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINEFRE R =58
foreign operations (1,284) 1,418
Exchange differences reclassified to HESIINEBREFTHERER
profit or loss on disposal of HIRE =58
foreign operations 43(b) - (3,810)
Fair value changes of available-for-sale  AI{tHE S REEN A FEEE
financial assets (33,657) -
Reclassification adjustment for HEp R ESMEERRLZ
impairment loss recognised in respect BEBEEEN D EFAE
of available-for-sale financial assets 25,600 =
(9,341 (2,392)
Other comprehensive income for FEHME2EWE » MRHIE
the year, net of tax (8,607) 1,299
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2E R4 (95,645) (39,766)
Attributable to: T &7 e
Owners of the Company RNATEB A (91,253) (2,690)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE S (4,392) (37,076)
(95,645) (39,766)

Annual Report &3k 2016

65



66

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR MBSO R

As at 31 December 2016 R=-ZFE—NF+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-RE —h%F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BaE FHBxT FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B & 19 60,900 72,167
Prepaid lease payments BN EERFIE 21 2,432 3,259
Intangible assets B EE 23 - 6,113
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENEKE 25 - =
Deferred tax assets REFITREE 38 5,827 14,046
Total non-current assets FRBEEMRE 69,159 95,585
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 100,865 130,260
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 28() 117,442 169,322
Receivables for factoring business KRB 2 R EUR 28(i) 14,551 =
Prepayments, deposits and BRI ek
other receivables Hh el 8 29 154,883 14,834
Derivative financial assets PTEECRMEE 30 - 798
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 26 130,224 -
Current tax assets BNHATH IR & &= 4,867 1,442
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE Mk 31 208,293 441,207
Total current assets REBEEHAE 731,125 757,863
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 800,284 853,448
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Equity attributable to owners AARHEE NEGER
of the Company
Share capital A& A 39 4,955 4,955
Reserves (G 41 469,892 549,005
474,847 553,960
Non-controlling interests IR A (11,210) (5,958)
Total equity EREE 463,637 548,002

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

IN=NE IS

As at 31 December 2016 R=-—ZFE—NF+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FETT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBES
License rights payable FRT R K 23(b) 2,095 12,209
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIRAE 38 3,763 8,030
Total non-current liabilities knBEBEEE 5,858 20,239
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTE SR 32 81,452 116,528
Accruals and other payables TR B M E M EN A 33 159,072 143,709
Amount due to a joint venture B —MEEENIE 34 67 =
Amount due to a non-controlling BN —REE AR 2
shareholder of a subsidiary — 22 JEPE IS RS B N IE 34 327 135
Borrowings gE 35 79,712 -
License rights payable FRTREE R 3K 23(b) 4,904 15,043
Product warranty provisions EmiRFEE 36 3,800 4,298
Current tax liabilities BIHAR B &t 1,455 5,494
Total current liabilities REBRERE 330,789 285,207
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkEEEE 800,284 853,448

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are signed on

its behalf by:

Exgn T tF=A-t+/\BHELHTI

ATRBERE

Gong Shaoxiang Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
#OH ZEE
Director Director

EF EF

Annual Report 3k 2016 67



. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o AAN "")—’\,%E,%@Ji‘%
IV Dy = I &=

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FRAREARL
Share-
based
payments
reserve

Foreign

Share currency

Share  premium Merger translation
capital  account  reserve  reserve

Property  Investment
revaluation revaluation Contributed  Statutory  Capital  Capital
reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve contribution

1 ( (mto d1

Proposed Non-
dividend controlling
reserve Total interests Total equity

Retained
profits

68

HERE

WRH
hERZ
G

REi

FERER

At1 January 2015 R-E-15-f-H 4117 115508 3 19524 16,565 18298 2105 2 184,290 6176 36975 (18209 351547
Total comprehensive FEAENREE

income for the year = (453) 3691 = (1.844) (2690 (37,076)  (39,766)
Share-based payments WRHBERZ

(note 42) REH40) = = = = 934 934 934
Issue of shares nder share 1R 5B 131

optionscheme (note42) — EARAKEY) 4 3569 - - - (934) 2676 2676
Issue of shares E1kh 797 188663 = = = = 189,460 189,460
Disposal o subsidaries LEHEBAA

(note 43(b) (W430) - - - 2974 97 B X7/ B X )
Transfer tostatutory reserve BEZ T EE - 14 - (214) -

2014 finaldividend paid Bfi-E-RE

(note17) KBRS (W) = - - - 6176)  (6.176) (6.176)
Change n equity for the year  EREEEEH 838 192232 (4530 3691 4 2976 (5,032) (6,176) 184204 12251 196455
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%

t-A=t-8 4955 307,740 501 14987 20,256 18298 2319 2976 179258 553,960 (6,958 548,002
At 1 January 2016 R=E-7E-f-R 4955 307,740 3m 14987 20,256 - 18,208 2319 2976 - - 179258 - 553,960 (5,958) 548,002
Total comprehensive FE2EhELE

income for the year - - - (1,264) i) (8,057) - - - - - (82,646) - (912%) (4392)  (95,645)
Transfer to statutory reserve  BEZ RS - - - - - - - 183 - - (183) - - - -
Capital contrioutionfrom ~— RE—BTERE

lansfromastbstantl ~~ EEAEALE

shareholder - - - - - - - - - 11,280 - - - 11,280 - 11,280
Deemed disposal of partial ~ EEEHE-TEHBAT

inteest n a subsidiary Baalizee)

(note 43()) - - - - - - - 860 - - - - 860 (860) -
Change nequity for the year  EEHEXEH - - - (L8 B (8051 - 183 80 11,280 - (82829) - (3 (5252 (84365
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE

tZA=t-A 4955 307,740 3m 13,703 20,990 (805 18298 2,502 3,836 11,200 - 96,429 - 474847 (11,2100 463,637

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

2016 2015
—EB—XREF —E—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BtaF F#&T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (B51R),a A
Continuing operations SFIERCE TS (75,964) 43,916
Discontinued operations BRIEREER - (83,919)
(75,964) (40,003)
Adjustments for: FEE
Allowance for trade receivables, net U E AR B F5E 2801 583 4,966
Allowance on inventories, net FEREFE 624 11,129
Amortisation of intangible assets A BN 23 1,189 10,233
Depreciation e 19 17,261 22,549
Fair value loss on an investment —IEREMEZ A TEERE
property 20 18,345 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales HEHNESMEERE
financial assets 10 (4,741) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERE —BIREMEN—MH
holding an investment property NG € 10 (6,356) -
Gain on license rights contract TS M85 I
amendment 10 (16,369) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E S RVE E 2 RERE
financial assets 26 25,600 =
Share of profit of an associate PG — A E R B A - (29)
Share of loss of a joint venture AE—HE S EEE - 117
Loss on financial liabilities at fair value BRATEF ABRZ
through profit or loss THEEZER - 709
Loss/(gain) on derivative financial PTESREBE AEEBR
assets/liabilities (Uezs) 476 (7,062)
Bad debt written off in trade HiSHFE U B 5 R 2 IR
receivables 83 1,192
Bad debt written off in other 0 68 L Ath FE W RNIE 2 2B AR
receivables - 8,573
Finance costs & A AR 11 4,297 10,882
Impairment loss on intangible assets EEEREEE 23 - 3,500
Impairment loss on amount due from R — B N B FRIE VB RS 18
an associate - 448
Impairment loss on amount due from R —RE S EFRIERERE
a joint venture - 1,279
Bank interest income RITH BUA 10 (206) (1,780)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AR ZEE 115 2,071
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEAREZ
plant and equipment (Ukz8),#518 (50) 50
Provision on product warranty EmiR G 36 3,800 11,972
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meERenER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —=ZF—

75

NETZA=+—HIFFE

2016 2015
—E—KEF —E—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Operating (loss)/profit before working — Z:EE & FEFATL S
capital changes (EB8),/ = f (31,313) 40,796
Payment of license fee payables REETREFE ST 3R (1,511) (3,756)
Decrease in inventories FERD 28,771 52,893
Decrease in trade receivables FEUE B RFUR A 51,214 85,971
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERFOE - e RHEA
deposits and other receivables RN R IE (38 hn) R A (179) 33,309
Decrease in amounts due from JE U B o B FRIE R
associates - 1,234
Increase in amount due from a FEUR — A & S FRIEIE N
joint venture - (1,262)
Increase in amount due to B —RE & FEFRIEL M
a joint venture 67 =
Increase in amount due from a FEU — KB A T2
non-controlling shareholder of — % FEPEAR AR B FRIE I AN
a subsidiary - (336)
Increase/(decrease) in amount R —REHBARZ
due to a non-controlling shareholder —Z IR AR R R TE
of a subsidiary #hn, G ) 192 (1,363)
Increase in receivables for factoring % BR B iR S A 2 FE MR IE E AN
business (14,551) -
Decrease in trade payables BB SRR (35,076) (132,251)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and TEIRE A R HAM
other payables FEfF3RIEIE I, CRid) 14,904 (33,298)
Decrease in product warranty EmRABERD
provisions (4,298) (11,833)
Cash generated from operations KERTSIR G 8,220 30,104
Income tax paid B X SR (14,339) (8,377)
Finance costs paid EX &N (296) (6,311)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEB(FTA), TSRS 35
operating activities (6,415) 15,416

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREeMER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

2016 2015
—E—KEF —T—HhF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F#&T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETBHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in cash in LERTRESEFP RS
margin account of brokerage firm WA, (3En) 333,933 (334,000)
Decrease in financial liabilities at EBEAFEFEC SREERD
fair value - (3,156)
Decrease in prepaid lease payments TE R ERER 615 3,114
Refundable Deposit paid for proposed MBBE B EEBMS 2
acquisition of a target group TRET S (140,000) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and HEKBAT (FIKRELEEZ
cash equivalents disposed of) Be MIBESEEY) 43(b) - 153,037
Interest received B UIFLE 206 1,780
Purchase of available-for-sale financial HBEAHEEemERE
assets (286,991) -
Purchase of an investment property BE—IBIREYSE 20 (55,575) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE - BEM&E
equipment 19 (7,597) (26,067)
Proceeds from disposal of an investment H&—IBEREWE 2 18R IE
property 43,600 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - WEREEZ
plant and equipment Fr830E 4,441 268
Net proceeds from disposal of HEHEESHmEEY
available-for-sale financial assets FTiS kB 58 127,851 -
Net proceeds from settlement of HETESHMEE AE
derivative financial assets/liabilities FR1S R IBF58 322 11,006
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEBME(FTR)BELFE
investing activities 20,805 (194,018)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Borrowings raised BEEREE 90,000 -
Proceeds from placing Bl & A3 508 - 189,460
Proceeds from exercise of share options  17{# B IR HEFT 1S 3018 - 2,676
Bank loans raised BESRITER - 96,314
Repayment of bank loans ERIFTER - (140,089)
Net import/export loans repaid BigE HOEREE - (43,425)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company R TS AL A% S - (6,176)
Net cash generated from financing MEREMBIRE TR
activities 90,000 98,760
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH RE&RHELZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #n, ORd) B8 104,390 (79,842)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ X85/ 2 (3,371) 1,297
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BNERERRESEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 107,207 185,752
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=B=+—HW
AT 31 DECEMBER BERBRESEEY 31 208,226 107,207

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\‘/T\

BB ERRN T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities on
18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
and principal place of business is Suites 5815-5816, 58/F., Two
International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rule”) on the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

—RER

ARRR=ZZ—LFHA +)\EI$EW*
FIEHSRSEMK L AEREERA

H SR == BR s sk & Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands * 3= B & 3 3t 25 1]
AEBPReHESHEESmFP L =H
5818 5815-5816 = « RARIRMAET EMS
RGBERARE ([BEAZAT]) ER £ ©

ARBRREERLR - HBARNE
BEBENIRAMERERME24

ZEGAVBBRRDIRETEEHMAE
(IBEGMAG )R ZMEERER
FBEHREER ([ EEHBHREER DR -
BRPBHEENBEEBMEREE]
(F%i’éﬁﬁ%i&iﬁﬂw) BEAEEN(E

SRFER ) k2 - RFHRAMBHE
M EH R FraE s LR RN EmARR])
HER BRI R BB RAEDI(E622F)
MIRBERTE AEERAZEESRER
WERHIEES o

BREGENAGERME T IR REERT
BEMBHREED  ZFERNAEER
SRR B RERK ARG - EH
AEBEFREcBENERERLLSEHET R
RRISRT 2 R PRSI BUE BT MR & 7T B
SIBREMNEE  ERMEFESNB
BRARKR - BEERFIIRMGES -
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~— . NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L ERA M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

o
!
b
o

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRI RS E] BB RELE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Il
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERAFHTRZEITERBUBRE
28
The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs BEACHMASEEMBZEN S
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after —NF—A—Hxk2REBRZFEH
1 January 2016. None of these developments have had a M BEIRERZ ] RIS B A5
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial AR o hFERB LB EEAE
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or B Z B BARNARREES
presented. HERMERRERNERNTE -
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) CEMEERERZHTREE
HES: g el
The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that AEBWEREERSBMHEREAR
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial —E—RE— A BRBZUREE
year beginning 1 January 2016. These new and revised HKFRSs R FR] RSB R BB IS G %
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. Bl o A B EAANER B G B 2 BT R4S

RIBEAMBHREEBEA TSR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHH
W2 EBRZ
ESrHEER
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
ARG ERFE T RN MERE - BT B 21E5] —E—tF—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses
BRI ERFERRASH AR BEBRREERIBEE ZE5] —ET—+F—H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
ARV BEREEREIRESHITA —E—)\F—A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BRI HHREEREFREERFELMEA —ET-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
ARV R EERE6REE —ZE-hF—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what AREEIR E T L 8 5] sl 228
the impact of these amendments and new standards is RYVRERHRTERERZFE - £
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the S REBERENIERIZETH
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which HA UG AV BRRIBREARNY
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial Z - FlRBHTEZE—FHBERAT
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are Xamilt o AN M R TSR AER ET
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its f - LA RNEE R BT EE
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course. — o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\‘/T\

BB ERRN T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the classification
of financial assets which is based on cash flow characteristics
and the business model in which the asset is held. A debt
instrument that is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and that has
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding is measured at
amortised cost. A debt instrument that is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
the contractual cash flows and selling the instruments and that
has contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding is measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt instruments are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Equity instruments are generally measured at fair value
through profit or loss. However, an entity may make an
irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities are carried forward largely unchanged from
HKAS 39 except that when the fair value option is applied
changes in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognised in other comprehensive income unless this
creates an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model
to replace the incurred-loss impairment model in HKAS 39. It
is no longer necessary for a credit event or impairment trigger
to have occurred before impairment losses are recognised. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, an entity will generally
recognise 12-month expected credit losses. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, an
entity will recognise lifetime expected credit losses. The
standard includes a simplified approach for trade receivables
to always recognise the lifetime expected credit losses.

N
R T RIS AT BB R

A (%
(b)

)

© 28 i {8 1] R 4 Rz #i v B 218
I E B BREER ()

BERMBEREEANFEIREMTA

ZEAMKE LG EAEIRS
MITH: BRAKAE -

FZERR e REE SRS AF A
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried

forward largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge accounting
requirements in HKAS 39 to align hedge accounting more
closely with risk management and establish a more principle

based approach.

The Group’s financial assets that are currently classified as
available-for-sale include certain listed equity securities. The
Group expects to irrevocably designate these equity securities
as fair value through other comprehensive income. This will
give rise to a change in accounting policy. The listed equity
securities are currently measured at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in other comprehensive income until
disposal or impairment at which point the fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss. Under HKFRS 9 recycling

of the fair value gains and losses is not permitted.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS 9
may result in the earlier recognition of impairment losses on
the Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets. The
Group is unable to quantify the impact until a more detailed

assessment is completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and

interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to become entitled in exchange for

those goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRI RS ET BB RELE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) B (%)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EBEMERKRERZFHTRLEE

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core
principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5, Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure
requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements but unable
to estimate the impact of the new standard on the
consolidated financial statements until a more detailed
analysis is completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward the accounting requirements
for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating or financing
leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group’s office property leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the
Group may need to recognise and measure a liability at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases.
The interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The
Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As discussed in note 46, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties amounted to HK$25,843,000 as at 31 December
2016. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
assessment in order to determine the new assets and liabilities
arising from these operating leases commitments after taking
into account the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. land and buildings and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value.).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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.'.'.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEEIHER(E)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) (@) #“ZEERR (&)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination (other than under common
control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combination (other than under common

control) and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
(“"CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews
are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared
to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant
activities are activities that significantly affect the returns of
the arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each its joint arrangements and
determined them to be all joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method and is
initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the joint venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is tested for impairment together with the
investment at the end of each reporting period when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture
(which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If
the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results
in a loss of joint control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture (including
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate, the Group continues to apply
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

4.

BB ERRN T
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than land and buildings)
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amounts do not differ materially from those that would be
determined using fair values at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e A% R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

.'.'.

4:" SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, BEEIHER(E)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (&) Y% BERXME(E)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for
the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued buildings is recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term or
20%-25%

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools 10%-25%
Furniture and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 18%-33"/:%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z ==L

4.

BB ERRN T

—NFETZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (acquired separately)

Trademarks are measured initially at cost and are assessed to
have indefinite useful lives. No amortisation is charged to
profit or loss. Useful lives are reviewed during each reporting
period to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the
trademarks. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.

License rights, customer relationship, patents and technologies
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Useful lives of license rights, customer
relationship, patents and technologies are as follows:

License rights Over the license period

Customer relationship 3-6 years
Patents 4 years
Technologies 3years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leases

The Group as lessee

0]

()

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the lease
term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z ==L
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

@

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group’s product development
activity is recognised only if all of the following conditions are
met:

— The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

— There is ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available;

— The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

4.
Q)

()

BEHEA

(%)
MERMAR
FHIR R B 2 3% H I A AR PR
B - ARE 2 EQHEEDMES

ZABEERTEEENTTE TR
BIRAET - DEMER

- ERZEREENZMLEER
17 ABHEHAIRERKHE ¢

- EHEREERRENEEY
ERARHE

- ABAEAOFERAZH
=

ERBLEAE

- RAERETEENASESE
Al 882 AR RAL A 25

E

- BRANKIM  MBMEGE
TR DA T2 X B 35 30 8 A Bk th B X
B EE:

- BRAEERZEHANEGZX
HEES R SEHIAT & ©

B EE A M B VARK AR R A1 4 3
NOREERYIRR o #5 TR EfEFA]
ERFHABRENE - EXEAA
ELEIEER THRE - MR
RELHREARBRPER -

i
FE R AR R FAME T 28
55 BIGR - B A b5 M S R
% o BB EER S ZRADERM
K EEATREE LD A R
MR - RSMHIEA (UER) o 7
ST T A B IR 2 st
5 R 5T SERR AR T f ) S B
B2 R -

Annual Report &3k 2016

89



.l
- "
g™

90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IRa

% N

BT TS Rk MY vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Recognition and derecognition of financial

Q)

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial
assets within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m

Financial assets (Continued)

®

@ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. These assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
(except for short-term receivables where interest is
immaterial) minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectibility. Typically trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash are classified in this category.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-
maturity investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, until the investments are
disposed of or there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(o) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has been
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with

a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the component meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also

occurs when the component is abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(@)

"

(s)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is recognised
on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are

delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission are

recognised when the services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights

to receive payment are established.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.

(u) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting

period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions

payable by the Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

v)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the
date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

—NFETZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

1§

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

4.

)

Ny
2EEBR(E)
BiIE (&)
BEBIARERNHE QR R E R
AIZBRERNA LR ZEEES
FERTLE B =5 T IAMERR R AL
EBRENIEHI TR ZREE - MEH
EZRBRAENGN A B HRED A
BRAN
EREHAEE ZREEDN SRS

RETRE - LT AREHR - BE
Al RS SR B A AT 2 P ek
A BER TWESLE

IRIEFE BAR R A RS HAAR AT B2 B =k
ABEBEMZHE  REHERRE
EBEREEL BB 2 R ERTHE -
R BMEE IR BRIBRER
BETREMEEIK S E ER RS
RYAERCEBEE  EXBERT &
ERTANAE b 2 E RS s B A
AR ©

EEHRBEENBEZGERRRE
AEBERHARFERARKO S AT
BENMABZEABZ I ABELZ
MR -

B A QAR 58 B 1T R A BN AR
HEERENMNAEE  REAH
RS R —REE BB FE
B ARAEE GBI FRE LS
HEVMMIREE K B ER - EEHIA
BENMBEREREH -

Annual Report &3k 2016

97



.l
- "
g™

98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=IAN
N

4.

BT TS Rk MY vt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

—NFETZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

(aa)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal
of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at fair value
through profit or loss) are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows of
the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\‘/T\

BB ERRN T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the delayed payments in
the portfolio, observable changes in economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by
adjusting the allowance account for trade receivables) through
profit or loss. However, the reversal must not result in a
carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised cost of the
financial asset would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.

(bb) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(cc) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Split of land and building elements

The Group determines that the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements.
Accordingly the entire lease of land and buildings is classified
as a finance lease and included under property, plant and
equipment.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of certain assets involve valuation technique

The fair value of certain land and buildings, and derivative
financial instruments as set out in note 7(c), note 19, and note
30 to the consolidated financial statements involve valuation
techniques. When applying valuation techniques, various
assumptions and generally accepted methodologies were
used to derive the fair values. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the fair
value of the underlying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

©

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$60,900,000 (2015
HK$72,167,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2016, accumulated allowance for slow-
moving inventories was approximately HK$29,947,000 (2015:
HK$29,323,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Impairment loss of bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and/
or the past collection history of each debtor. Impairment arises
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectable. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts, in particular of a loss event requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

As at 31 December 2016, accumulated allowance for trade
receivables amounted to approximately HK$5,197,000 (2015:
HK$4,614,000).

Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised based
on past experience of level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present value as appropriate. Movement of the
product warranty provisions during the year is set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$3,800,000 (2015:
HK$4,298,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. During the year, approximately
HK$11,074,000 (2015: HK$5,549,000) of income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated profit from
continuing operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Initial fair value of renegotiated license rights payable

The Group has renegotiated with the licensor and changed the
terms of payment of an existing intangible asset — RCA
License Rights during the year. The changes included certain
outstanding license rights payable being waived and reduction
of annual minimum guaranteed license rights payment from
year 2016 to 2018. The license rights payable’s new carrying
amount after the above changes was a fair value determined
by reference to the revised future annual minimum guaranteed
license rights payments discounted at an appropriate rate.
Where the estimation of these factors is different from those
previously estimated, such differences will impact the initial
fair value of renegotiated license rights payable and the gain
on license rights contract amendment.

The carrying amount of license rights payable as at 31
December 2016 was HK$6,999,000 (2015: HK$27,252,000).

Initial fair value of shareholder loans

During the reporting period, the Group has borrowed non-
interest bearing loans with principal amounts of HK$70 million
from a substantial shareholder. The loans were recognised at
fair value at inception and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method. The initial fair
value of the loans was measured as the present value of the
loan repayments discounted using the prevailing market rate
of interest for a similar loan with a similar credit rating. The
market rate of interest for similar loans was not observable
and need to be estimated by risk fee rate, credit risk premium
and liquidity premium applicable to the Group. Where the
estimation of these factors is different from previously
estimated, such differences will impact the initial fair value of
shareholder loans and the subsequent finance cost. Details of
fair value of shareholder loans are provided in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount of shareholder loans as at 31 December
2016 was HK$59,712,000 (2015: Nil).

A H i & F 2 EE ()

fhEr PR E 2 T ERR ()

(9)

(h)

ENHERETRENRZALS ATE

FA - ARECERBASHHEL
Fh—ARAELEE (RCAKFE)
ZHRGER ZFEBHERERN_F
—RNEFE_T-\FZETREER
RN B 2 MFE & EERF
RN UKD - Bt
FAREE (KRR L& 8) Hig2
ZRAERLRRZ KIERTREF
EREEREFFEBNRMEE 2R
FE - WRFERRZETRRIAE
it BFRAZRRTESNHE 5
RN R Z ME R FERSFES
BT M S

R-ZT—XNFE+-_A=1+—8 #:F
WE B 5K 2 BR E B 46,999,000 78 7T
(ZZ—FR% : 27,252,000#7T) °

BRRER 2SR FE

RpEHE  AEBER—BREER
B £ A A4 58 470,000,000 T 2
RBEXR - BERUIFIRAFERER
H B IR SR AN A B R R =R AT
E - BRZMSATFEARKBEE
UEETHEZBUERZ ERITSF)
KAIR B EEER 2 E - BUER
ZHBHRATAEE  FHMAEA
RALBHERBRFE  EEERE
BRAEBIEEEM - MEEREZ
B TRARAE G EEEEEY
BRFER BN TERELE 2B
BRA - BRRER 2 AFEFHBHN
A SRR MIFESS

RZZ—RE+=ZA=+—H BX
B BRE (B &59,7120008 T (=&
—hF TEIT)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BIEERER
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign AEBEBTHAZSEAFRER : JNE
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The B EERE  AHEEER R EE
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the e AEEMBEBREKREEEE R IN®
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential BT 5 A9 T A] TEORIE K BN BRK S AR S E
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. I RIBOBETFIFE -
(a) Foreign currency risk (a) SRR
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as AEETEIE TINERR - RER
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are ABLEKRS BERABEEMN
principally denominated in United States dollar (“USD”), E(xET])  ARET(ARE])
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). EAT (BT 5E -
The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure at the TRAFASERREARACDER
end of reporting period to foreign currency risk arising from RRBINE S ER B ER a Em Ak
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in respective KEZINERBE - HEFIEMME -
foreign currencies. For presentation purposes, the amounts of R & REIE RS Hi R HE R E A
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollar translated using PAB TR ©
the spot rates at the end of reporting period.
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Denominated in Renminbi DAR¥TIE
Deposits and other receivables & R H M R FIE 240 764
Bank and cash balances R1T IR 8% 45 14
Trade payables B E SRR (5,826) (6,184)
Accruals and other payables TR E R M E bR FUR (6,808) (6,817)
Amounts due to group companies RSB R R REIA (2,251) (1,508)
Total et (14,600) (13,731)
Denominated in Hong Kong dollar B T HIE
Bank and cash balances IRITMIR S Kk 21,110 8
Amounts due from group companies [ e ENGIE Q] 52,222 57,676
Total 5T 73,332 57,684
104  China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEE @ EE X EE AR A )
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have been
arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables remained

PR REE (&)

@) MR (E)
BREFTE LR SEHEFIE - K
EEPNREPRAEEERBNE
1%%¢@XWE“@ REBFE
B8 RS ml pe HIR M BB 2L 0 R
AT

constant.
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-RF
Foreign Foreign
currency currency
appreciate/ appreciate/
Foreign currency/ (depreciate) (depreciate)
functional currency SN 5 I B 1 K by HK$°000 by HK$ 000
SNEFHES HNETHE,
(FE1H) Tz (@) TR
Renminbi/ AREH, 5% (3,481) 5% (2,711)
Hong Kong dollar BT (5)% 3,481 (5)% 2,711
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate its AREBEF BITA S /T A DURBIERINE
risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. The use of N RHEE c BEEEDRYEE
financial derivatives has been closely monitored by SRITETEMGER - AEF2RE
management. The Group would choose financial institutions S EEHANSRBEEFERITES
with high credit rating as counter party when using derivative BT EARHEF S - REBIRRITE
financial instruments. The Group currently does not have a HEABBEMIINES S  BEKAG
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign HIONEE SRR - NEB R ERE
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group INERER  EEReEEEREAN
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will YNEE R B o
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
(b) Credit risk (b)y EERAK
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade REFBNZERBRTEARNERKE
receivables and receivables from factoring business. In order SEEE N RS Eh i XS 2 FE WG IE BT
to minimise credit risk, the directors have delegated a team to o AREEERE BEESEES
be responsible for the credit assessment, determination of =ZEHE - ST EERRE - EEHAE

credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures. In addition, the directors review the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables and receivables
from factoring business regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

REMEERFOBEK - I BF
S Bt @RI EUE 5 R R T iR
BUBRT 2 RUGHORR) AT E £ 58

FEOR L R U [ (B IR HERR T 2 YRl (B
B8 - 5l EERA/AKENEER
[ KRR A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e A% R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

.'.'.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UKEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERB(E)

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 27.4% (2015: 27%) of
trade receivables as at 31 December 2016.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. To control the
credit risk of receivables from factoring business, they were
arranged as factoring with recourse.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain cash deposit and investment securities
in the margin account of a brokerage firm. The brokerage firm
is a subsidiary of a Hong Kong listed company hence the
directors consider the credit-rating is acceptable. The margin
account enables the brokerage firm to re-pledge the Group’s
securities collateral (if any) in the margin account and use it as
collateral to secure borrowings for the brokerage firm’s use. If
the brokerage firm becomes insolvent, the banks may liquidate
the securities collateral re-pledged to it by the brokerage firm
in order to discharge the brokerage firm’s indebtedness. As a
result, the Group may not be able to recover all the securities
in the margin account. This is commonly known as “pooling
risk” associated with the margin account. As at the end of
reporting period, the Group is not exposed to any pooling risk
as the Group’s cash deposit or investment securities held by
the brokerage firm have not been re-pledged.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains

sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ BEAE X £ E AR AT

AEBMAZETEEETRK  RE
RAEB=KEBAFMME=Z—/RF
+-ZA=t+—HBHNEKESEIE
27.4% (ZFB—FHF : 27%) °

AREBHETHE  BRAAESE
SERENEFETHE - REHT
REUR R RUGKIANEERR -
HE2HERARAEPENTIRE
i o

RITEASHEBNEERRER @ R
REHF I BEREENEMBERT
25 ERTARERTT

AEERELBRESRPFES T
BLEMARZHERR  EihEER
RECEEFRBAER - RESKP
BERLHBERRESRFALEE
ZBFERGB(NE) KA ZEER
mARIRER - HELHER o W
REENER  RITUERELER
HEER BB RENER
B2 BT - Bt - AEER AR
EEFRRESRP ZIAES © ILH
RETREAR  FHEIEERR] -
RS IR - ANEE I & e ) [
KRR AARCEMFIAREZ
REFRFIREBHIERFEM -

REBE SRR

AEBNBRATEHRERRR LESR
WRBESHTE  UERAEEHR
RARE FHEARNEHRERRAN
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash

flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

At 31 December 2016

Trade payables
Accruals and other
payables
Amount due to a joint
venture
Amount due to
a non-controlling
shareholder of
a subsidiary
Borrowings
License rights payable

RZE—RE
+=A=+-8
e E SRR
HERERREM

e R
BN —FRa%ERE

e — R A ﬂZ
— R IR R

&
HRHERE MK

Less than
1 year and
on demand

1£TF

RR#ERE
ERE
HK$°000
TERT

81,452
159,072

67

327
90,557
8,093

6. H5EER

((3)

Between
1land 2
years

NF
122%
HK$°000
TR

2B ()
REE S (])

rEES
FEE SO

Between
2and 5
years

NF
2B55
HK$°000

FiEx

BiBsF
HK$°000
TERT

REBENAXIERRRSR

Mt
HK$7000
TR

81,452
159,072

67

327
90,557
9,358

At 31 December 2015

Trade payables
Accruals and other
payables
Amount due to a
non-controlling
shareholder of
a subsidiary
License rights payable

R-ZE-1F
TEEET=0F
e B S ERH
BIREAREM

e RE
Eﬁfﬁmgﬂﬁz
— IR

HEHRIE (R

Less than
1 year and
on demand

TFEAT

R
BRE
HK$'000
FH7

116,528

143,709

135
16,495

Between
land 2
years

NI
fZE 2%
HK$'000
FET

9,300

Between
2and 5
years

NF
P54
HK$'000

FAT

BIRS5F
HK$'000
THET

9,688 =

3t
HK$000
T

116,528

143,709

135
35,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable rates varied
with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/(increased)
the Group’s loss for the year and increased/(decreased)
retained profits as follows:

FEEH ()

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates

100 E 24
(100) E 24

100 basis points
(100) basis points

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis throughout the year.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7

6.

M ERERE (&)
(d) RN=EERE

REBTBAXZHERITHERNTERE
B o ZEFFIFEM KGR - FE
BERTRME °

R=_B—X"F+=-A=+—H8 " &F
EEMEREFTENERT » et
=g A (TF#)100 EE 2
RE@MOEEBIERLD,(G8N) 2R
B A e m Ok -

2016 2015
AL —h%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
1,223 524
(1,223) (524)

EXHRED I REBRMEEFF
EFENBRARAX ﬁéﬂﬁ£$
KSEFEBBERESBROTE -
iRz R —EEET -



™N

"‘-.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IRA

% N

P ek

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

e
\
\‘\.

R,

h

“”‘-‘.

]

S

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRERE(E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (e) A+t=-A=+t—HWERMIEE
Al
2016 2015
—E-XRE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFT AEER
profit or loss: SRMEE :
Held for trading BHIEEE - 798
Loans and receivables Bk EWRFIA
(including cash and cash equivalents): (BFERSRESZEY) :
Trade receivables JEUE S ER TR 117,442 169,322
Receivables for factoring business RERRLBER 2 FEUEIR 14,551 -
Deposits and other receivables e M E bR TRIA 145,531 6,942
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4 208,293 441,207
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESRMEE 130,224 -
Financial liabilities: SRIBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RESEATIENSRAE
Trade payables JEE SR 81,452 116,528
Accruals and other payables ?E%E%&E%FEH% 149,177 133,501
Amount due to a joint venture JER—ME & ER 67 =
Amount due to a non-controlling JER—FEHTB A 72 %
shareholder of a subsidiary JEIERG AR R 1B 327 135
Borrowings gg 79,712
License rights payable AT X 6,999 27,252
(f) Fair values FH 2A¥FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBRGRE MR ARFAHSHE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of EkcHEENEREEESENA
financial position approximate their respective fair values. FERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure

fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:

level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

inputs other than quoted prices included within

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

Recurring fair value measurements: EEMH A FEE :

Fair value measurements using:

AVEFERANER

Level 1

F1E
HK$°000
TERT

AF{E B
AFERMHLRE ARG ERERF
REFHEREMBAXNBRABAN
Z B  AKRERANTATFESHRE
BELAFEFTE  HBANGTEATED
ERMHNEAERD B=EEMR :

Z1BRAGR  AEERHEATR
Bz ERAERAE
2R TISRE (ki
BE) -

F2RBABH  F1EMBRIHEN
SN EBERBER
BEERSREHRFY
ZBAER -

FIBHAAN : AESRETTHE
ZHARR -

AEENBRERSEEHEENEEXER
BHNAHMER-ESREBNEALE
4o

(@) AFESREBHIRE

Total

st

2016
—EB-—RE
HK$°000
TER

Level 3
E3E
HK$°000
TR

Level 2
E2E
HK$°000
THET

Fixed assets BEEEE
Commercial units — Hong Kong BEEN - BB
(note 19) (s 19) - 26,300 - 26,300
Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ ATHESREE
(note 26) (HiaF26)
— Equity securities listed in —-REELETZ
Hong Kong PR 2 130,224 - - 130,224
130,224 26,300 - 156,524

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AYEREZE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (@) AFESHREBHHEE: (FE)
(Continued)

Fair value measurements using: Total
AFEGEMANER : @zt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015

L %2 £3 —E-H&
R HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiEr Fitr FitT FitT

Recurring fair value measurements: EEH AL EEE :

Fixed assets EE&EE
Commercial units — Hong Kong BEBN - BE
(note 19) (H19) - 26,700 - 26,700
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through A EEE ABZ
profit or loss HEREE
— Derivative financial assets —THEEREE
— currency options (note 30) — BEHEE
(Hiz£30) - 798 - 798
= 27,498 = 27,498
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. RAYEREZEE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liabilities) measured at fair (b) ERFIBRATEFTENE
value based on level 3: B/ (8 YEk:

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

BATEFABENEREE /(A

RCA
business TrekStor
Freehold telephone multimedia Fargo
land and system product  communication
buildings — distribution distribution product 2015
India business business business Total
XAEELH RCA¥KE: TrekStorﬁﬁ%‘@ Fargo B EEM —E-hF
REF-HE ZRANER Em EER *% 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THEL THL T THL
At 1 January R—A—A 23,950 = (3,123) (951) 19,876
Total losses recognised in NEEPERNEELEE
profit or loss - - - (709) (709)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 43(b)) (HF43m) (23,710) = - 1,353 (22,357)
Transfer to other payables* EREHMENZE - - 2,849 307 3,156
Exchange differences ERER (240) - 274 - 34
At 31 December iz ety el = - - = = -
The total losses recognised in profit or loss are presented in RNEXEZNERAENRE—T
other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of —FE+-—A=+—HILEENLEL
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015. BRERNEMSLERRNZY) o
In 2015, the final amount payable was agreed and fixed with relevant * RZT—RF  EREBTNARER
party, hence transfer to other payables. BE&RENSE  AHEESBREHMm
AT FRIE
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

©

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2016:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The financial controller reports directly to the Board of
Directors for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 2 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

Level 2 fair value measurements

Valuation technique

fhEHRD

Inputs

BAER

Derivative financial assets — Binomial option pricing Average strike
currency options model exchange rate
ITEeRARE - EHME ZEABEEEER T hERER
Commercial units located Market comparable Price per
in Hong Kong approach square meter
R B BRI R B & ELE R % GYARER

During the two years, there were no changes in valuation
technigues used.

7. RHEFEE)

((3)

2016
ZE-RE

HK$°000
T
Assets

3

26,300

HEAEER =B —NE+H
=+-BRRANGEERS  f
EHT5R AT E BARANE
TR

AEENMBTER AR BREHE
THHENEERABHRFENE

(BERFIBAFENE) MBEXE
REZERATEFEEEREEZSE
B MBETEREETEBFELMA
WA B ERF RS

RE2BRFEFEMS  AEEB
FRERAGERITEXELGRAN
HAERKENIINSHEERETH
=0

F2EBAYEFE
Fair value
AP
2015
1%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T THL T
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
8% BE 8%
- 798 -
- 26,700 =
REEEEA - FrE A EERSGIE
EEE LML o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

YA
AEBRELERB2FRRADTAOT

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET T T
Sales of goods HEEM 752,366 1,017,604
Net sales return arising from EmRRBEERR
product warranty (3,800) (9,043)
748,566 1,008,561
Factoring interest income HAREBF B YA 183 =
748,749 1,008,561
SEGMENT INFORMATION D EpE R
The Group has three operating segments as follows: AEBE=EEEDZLT :
EMS — Electronic manufacturing services BFRERE - B FEERE
Distribution of — Marketing and distribution of DEBAEMR —  EHEOHEBME®D
Communications Products communications products
Securities and Other —  Securities and other assets BH K HA -  BHEMEMEERE
Assets Investment investment BERE
A new operating segment, Securities and Other Assets Investment AEFKY —BHKEDE - BIFEHFRE
was formed during the year. The Company, certain newly formed HEERE - ARA - BTHHRLHBAR

subsidiaries and certain subsidiaries formerly under EMS segment
form the constituents of this new operating segment.

Two operations (Multimedia Products and Computer Accessories
and Gaming Products and Toy (“GPT”)) were disposed of in the year
ended 31 December 2015. Part of the EMS and Distribution of
Communications Products operations were also disposed of in the
year ended 31 December 2015. The segment information reported
does not include any amounts for these discontinued operations.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

114 China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEE @ BE X EE AR A )
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHWER(E)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as KBNS ISR AR S SRR W et 4
those described in the note 4 to the consolidated financial Fiy #it %*ﬁlﬂ o DEMIEmI TN BIEAR D AL H
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated Y E—HALERFEE - J?Hﬁl

—BAECEREREBANMEN
BEELTEER— F'EEJ/\%ﬁ%Z%xﬁ&

expenses, share of profits/losses of a joint venture, impairment loss
on amount due from a joint venture and income tax. Segment assets

do not include investment in a joint venture and deferred tax assets. BEFRBEEE - D PEBLTEERER
Segment liabilities do not include borrowings and deferred tax BEFREAE - DBIERDEEL T BRIE
liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not include deferred tax BELEFIBEARE °

assets.

REBRERTHEILS BHEHEE REEA
B BB E =T iHE N EE -

FESESEXRBHRE D IR
NREE EEREENESR

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

Information about reportable segment profit or loss,
assets and liabilities from continuing operations:

(a) (a)

Distribution of  Securities and
Communications Other Assets
EMS Products Investment Total
ETHE B EHREM
PR Em EERE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TET TET
Year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE-T—<F
+ZA=+-HLFE
Revenue from external REIMNREPUA
customers 668,984 79,582 183 748,749
Intersegment revenue S EBREUA 37,446 - - 37,446
Segment profit/(loss) SEREH,/ (E5E) 22,011 5,173 (82,335) (55,151)
Interest revenue FIBUA 196 - 10 206
Interest expense MEHx - 2,550 - 2,550
Depreciation and amortisation 37 Kk 16,732 1,259 459 18,450
Other material non-cash items:  EEAI R LA
Fair value loss on an BEMEZD ?@Eﬁﬁ
investment property - - 18,345 18,345
Impairment loss on HESREEY
available-for-sale AEEE
financial assets - - 25,600 25,600
Gain on disposal of a HE—HFERENE
subsidiary holding HBAR K
an investment property - - 6,356 6,356
Gain on license rights HETER RETT &
contract amendment - 16,369 - 16,369
Additions to segment DEIETEEERR
non-current assets 6,417 30 1,150 7,597
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
+=ZBA=1+-H
Segment assets NEEE 444,403 54,977 342,119 841,499
Segment liabilities NEEE 238,888 55,585 2,093 296,566
Investment in a joint venture R—TRALENKE - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DHBER(EE)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, Q) FHRFESEEBRNRE 2 IR
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: FHEEE BEREBENEE:
(Continued) (48)

Distribution of
Communications
EMS Products Total

BYRERT  HHENES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-41F

+ZRA=+—-HLEE
Revenue from external customers R BINERFE WA 917,271 91,290 1,008,561
Intersegment revenue DEBEUA 47,260 - 47,260
Segment profit/(loss) DELE T (E51E) 62,405 (17,441) 44,964
Interest revenue IS ON 1,762 - 1,762
Interest expense FMEFRL 1,510 4,571 6,081
Depreciation and amortisation I R s 18,360 3,487 21,847
Other material non-cash items: HitEAFEHRSER ¢
Impairment loss on intangible BREEREEE
asset = 3,500 3,500
Additions to segment non-current D EBIETRENE E LR
assets 21,523 95 21,618
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—FF
+=A=t+—H
Segment assets DEPEE 784,052 87,201 871,253
Segment liabilities NEBE 233,866 92,568 326,434
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENEE -
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss, (b) FHBEERBNDBWBAREF
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: FEE BEERAEGENHK:
2016 2015
—E—KREF —E-hHF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Revenue PN
Total revenue of reportable segments A DL A 4B 58 786,195 1,055,821
Elimination of intersegment revenue 45 2R R U A K 3 (37,446) (47,260)
Consolidated revenue from Jo 488 4 WA R TR B AT A
continuing operations 748,749 1,008,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. SEEME)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss, (b) BERKEEBNITRARER
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: ZEE - BEEREBENHE:
(Continued) (%8)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit or loss g | =9 =
Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments 45 2B (E1R) i Al 42 (55,151) 44,964
Intersegment elimination 7 2B 85 662 348
Unallocated amounts: RO EHE
Imputed interest on non-interest KE—BETERRESE
bearing loans from a substantial ZIEEF A
shareholder (992) -
Interest on loans from an independent KE—BBILEZFH
third party BHF B (755) =
Other unallocated head office and Hih R D ECBPERE &
corporate expenses NEAX (19,728) -
Impairment loss on amount due BN —MR& & ERE
from a joint venture B EE - (1,279)
Share of loss of a joint venture PME—EEELFESE - 117)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax BEKEEBR 2GS
from continuing operations MBS (E18), i Al (75,964) 43,916
Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: PTHMEEREENHER :
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments mEDEEERLE 841,499 871,253
Elimination of intersegment assets D EPE B EE (46,070) (29,018)
Elimination of unrealised profits R i FI K 5H (2,172) (2,833)
Unallocated amounts: RO EEE
Prepayments B FA 1,200 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEEE 5,827 14,046
Consolidated total assets REEERE 800,284 853,448
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss,
assets and liabilities from continuing operations:
(Continued)

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:
(Continued)

D ERERL (8)

(b) BHEEEXEZNDIBBRARER
FEE BEERAEENHIER:
(&)

IHMEEREBENHR : (&)

2016 2015
—RE —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Liabilities =8

Total liabilities of reportable segments  ¥REHEPEEEE 296,566 326,434
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 3 BR B B (46,070) (29,018)

Unallocated amounts: RAOBEEEE -
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A N b EA R 2,676 -
Borrowings (ERs 79,712 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAE E 3,763 8,030
Consolidated total liabilities REBERE 336,647 305,446

(c) Geographical information:

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers by location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location are detailed below:

(c) HEEHR:

FEERBERERBRBIREFE
FETE PR S D VA A IR PR FE 3D
BN ZERBEEMRBERFRD

T~
2016 2015
— NI —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#&T T
Revenue ON
The People’s Republic of China FREE ARSLAE ([ ])

(the “PRC") (including Hong Kong) (BIEERE) 88,032 213,234
The United States of America EHRERE (=)

(the “U.S.A.”) 176,187 181,904
Switzerland Int 141,471 176,839
France 7NES 63,717 104,511
Poland Vg 18,902 76,916
United Kingdom T 43,299 53,008
Others Hfb 217,141 202,149
Consolidated total revenue N PN 748,749 1,008,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(¢) Geographical information: (Continued) (c) HEER: (&)
2015
—EB—XREF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx T T
Non-current assets RBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) PR (BIERE) 63,280 75,335
The U.S.A. EH 52 6,204
Consolidated total non-current assets HRAERBEER 63,332 81,539
(d) Revenue from major customers: d) REZTEEFHRA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account RAREBWRAIOBHIA LR EERS
for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows: WADHTET :
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TATT
EMS segment BFRERED I
Customer A ZHEA 201,260 269,136
Customer B ZFEB 125,574 145,832
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

10.

OTHER INCOME 10. HAslg A
2016 2015
—2—XRE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Continuing operations BEREER
Bank interest income SRITABMA 206 1,762
Consultancy fee income EHEL PN 1,140 54
Commission income [N 1,182 -
Tooling income HEIRA 1,123 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE REE 2K

plant and equipment 50 -
Gain on derivative financial assets MmESREENE - 7,062
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary holding HERE —BREWEN

an investment property —ENBAE 2 W 6,356 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEESMEERS

financial assets 4,741 =
Gain on license rights contract amendment  #raF#E S £ aT Uk zs (F15E23(b))

(note 23(b)) 16,369 -
Government subsidy BATE B 129 960
Research and development service income 2 BRIGUA - 782
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 406 492
Others Hih 2,717 2,575

34,419 13,687
FINANCE COSTS N BERAK
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Continuing operations SEREER
Bank loans interest IRITERFE - 802
Interest on import/export loans i OERFE - 708
Imputed interest on non-interest bearing RE—BEERREEERZ

loans from a substantial shareholder HEF S 992 -
Interest on loans from an independent RE—EBBIUE=FHZ2ERFE

third party 755 -
Other interest expenses HF 2 2,550 4,571

4,297 6,081
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2. FTERiEX
Income tax relating to continuing operations has been recognised in RELEER 2 MEHRERBRERNT
profit or loss as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TFETT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAF TR — BAFIEH
Provision for the year FEEE 5,839 10,110
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBERG (622) (32)
5,217 10,078
Current tax — Overseas BNHARR I8 — /o
Provision for the year FEEE 1,839 516
Under-provision in prior years BEFEEEBETT - 9
1,839 525
Deferred tax (note 38) EXEFIA (K7 38) 4,018 (5,054)
11,074 5,549
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2015; BE_ZT—RE+-A=+—HIFE"
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 REBRB A ERTOEH - $216.5% (=
December 2016. T—AF 165%) M RFHRESFEH
B o
PRC Enterprises Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25% PRI RIR25% B RFHEM SR A (=
(2015: 25%). T—AHF :25%)
Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at HAMi 77 RSN e R IBE A Ty iR AN &
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group EREMAERRKERNE - RIEEMRT
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices D RBRENFE -

in respect thereof.
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 2. FIsHiFAZ (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product Frs Fif S ERpR B AT (B548) & FI SR A S
of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax BHERREMTE L ZSENEHERD
rate is as follows: -
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
(Loss)/profit before tax BREiAT (E518) 5 F
(from continuing operations) (REHERSEER) (75,964) 43,916

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%  1#&EFEHH%16.5%

(2015: 16.5%) (ZZ—RF : 165%):TEZHE (12,534) 7,246
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BAERRWARNT B 2 (2,242) (633)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible A B AR B L 18,229 6,605
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREENTETE

not recognised 1,031 (2,506)
Tax effect of tax concession BEREOTBTE (3,873) (5,922)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHEEEE (622) (23)
Over-provision of deferred tax in prior years BEFERTHIABRERE (1,879) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BA AT ARERTEEEN

previously recognised Mg & (368) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR EEENRBETE 9,112 1,714
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MBRAANEERNTE 3,899 (828)
Others Hith 321 (104)
Income tax expense RS R (BRI ECEET)

(relating to continuing operations) 11,074 5,549
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

=R e
RERER

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 13. BEE (BE), &

OPERATIONS
ARERBECEEBFE (BR) HHNE
&, GEA) AT BRIREHFIAT

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations is
stated after charging/(crediting) the followings:

2016 2015

—~E —hF

HK$°000 HK$:000

TERT TAT

Allowance for trade receivables, net (note 28) e E 2 BRI R (f772 28) 583 4,966
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E

(included in selling and distribution expenses) (GtAHE RN HERAY) 1,189 3,440

Auditor’s remuneration ZER BN & 1,037 1,180

Bad debt written off in trade receivables MEHEME SRR TR 83 1,192

Cost of goods sold (Note () SHERA (B3 (1)

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 596,824 788,571
Allowance on inventories FERE 10,621 13,234
Reversal of allowance for inventories (Note (ii)) FEBERR (M i) (9,794) (5,338)

597,651 796,467

Depreciation e 17,261 18,407

Loss/(gain) on derivative financial assets TEEMEERR/ (W) 476 (7,062)

Fair value loss on an investment property —BRENE A TEERE

(included in other operating expenses) (note 20)  (BIIEHAMKLER)(H1:220) 18,345 -

Impairment loss on amount due from a joint venture EM—RA BN ETIBREERE

(included in other operating expenses) GTAEMEEER) - 1,279
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial AL ESREE ORERE(K7F26)
assets (note 26) 25,600 =

Impairment loss on intangible assets EREEREREGIARLMLEER)

(included in other operating expenses) - 3,500

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE R ESEy (%) /BB

plant and equipment (50) 50

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERE - EEEMEN

holding an investment property (note 10) — RPN A Rl Y (7 10) (6,356) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 115 2,071
Operating lease charges KEHEER

Land and buildings TiREF 21,140 19,152

Research and development expenditure MEERGIAEHELER)

(included in other operating expenses) (Note (iii)  (Hf3% (iii)) 29,550 32,764

Notes: Kt :

0) During the year ended 31 December 2016, cost of goods sold includes 0) HE-ZT—R"E+-_A=1+—HILFE ' HEX
approximately HK$122,876,000 (2015: HK$151,519,000) relating to employee ZIS@%ﬁEWEﬁ%mﬂﬁﬁEZ&}E%%UQZS%,OOO
benefits expense and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the BT (ZT—AF 151,519,000 7T) ' Z2F£5H
respective total amounts disclosed separately above and note 14 for each of IRet A B SO 141 B 3 5 S FE R S A AAEER -
these types of expenses.

(D) The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in @i AEEHERASBBERNRRENNTEED
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of BE -  BEREEERAREEREENTFES
inventories subsequently used in production or sold. Ao

(i)~ During the year ended 31 December 2016, research and development i) HE-ZT—R"F+-A=1+—HBLLFE ' HEH

expenditure includes approximately HK$27,129,000 (2015: HK$30,920,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

X BIEA B 1R B 48 IR XX £927,129,000 %t (=
T—AF :30,920,000/87T) * ZEDEEHNER
BT RERMTFE 14
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE

14, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense
for continuing operations:

FELEEBRERNAX -

2015
—B-AF —TRF

HK$°000 HK$000
TR TAT

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ AL NOERL 198,058 202,250
Equity-settled share-based payments LARERS 45 E LARR (D BB 7 3Kk - 934
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBRIET B TR 15,153 24,366

213,211 227,550

Five highest paid individuals for continuing and
discontinued operations:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2015: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The emoluments of the
remaining four (2015: two) individuals are set out below:

BESCEBRCRILIEEERTR
REHAL:

AEE  AEENAERSHFALBE—
Z(CE-RHF:=R)EF EB2RW
iE15(a) TP 2SR TIEE(ZF—
FMB)ESHFALHHEEIIWT

2016 2015

—EB—RE —ZT—H0F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT F&7T

Basic salaries and allowances %$%ﬁ’i\&5$95 10,564 3,430
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRFEFI I FR 237 133
10,801 3,563

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e BN T5IEE

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hHF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T E 2,500,000 % 7T - 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

2,500,001 7 7T £ 3,000,000 /87T - -
3,000,001 78 7T % 3,500,000 # 7T - -
3,500,001 % 7T Z 4,000,000 78 7T 2 -
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15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

15.

=@M Mg

() E=HMH
BSESHFHHIDT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RERES (BRNALARANE L DER) NAARE D REROHH

Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect of
director’s other
Remunerations services in
( paid or connection with
Estimated receivable in the management
money  Employer's respect of of the affairs
value of  contribution accepting of the Company
Discretionary other to a retirement office Housing or its subsidiary
Salaries bonus benefits benefit scheme as director allowance undertaking
i) RESAREE
Hip R EEEHK REZEES ARFRENE
e Bl BUEHAR DRANEMRE
e BERa BE #5 EROHH RREE  EARERGHEH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FhR T#n FhR FhR FhR T FhER
Name of director j £33
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) ~ BA#%EH (/) (ii) - 1,000 - - - - - - 1,000
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FEERE (i - 1,800 - - - - - - 1,800
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Cao Yuyun ERREE (ii) 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Mr. Bao Jingiao WAL (ii) 480 - - - - - - - 480
Mr. Wong Chun Hung BEBAE (i 20 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Leung Pok Man 2EEE (i) 240 - - - - - - - 240
Mr. Chan Kin Sang Rigtsks (iv) % - - - - - - - %
Total for 2016 BN 2,985 2,800 - - - - - - 5,785
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 15, ZE54&H Mg (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EE=FHM(E)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: ZEEHMHAWOT ¢

director,

CE

Remunerations

Total

Name of director EEfg

Executive directors HITEF

Mr. Gong Shaoxiang (Chairman) — ZDHFH (£/) (ii) - 158 - - - - - - 158

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRERE (ii) - 190 - - - - - - 190

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Mr. Cao Yuyun ERRELE (ii) 317 - - - - - - - 317

Mr. Bao Jingiao HEFEE (i) 76 = = = = = = = 76

Mr. Wong Chun Hung EEIEEE (i) 38 - - - - - - - 38

Mr. Leung Pok Man REXEE (ii) 3 - - - - - - - 38

Executive directors HIEF

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve BERLE (i) - 1,468 - - 110 - 1,100 - 2,678

Mr. Lee Kai Bon TERBRE (i) - 831 - - 48 - 280 - 1,159

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RpRLE (iii) - 986 - - 54 - 270 - 1,310

Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry EFRHEE (iif) 1,000 250 934 15 - - - 2,199

Madam Fok Pui Yin EMBELL (il - 993 - - %3 - - - 1,03

Non-executive directors FHTEF

Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter ~ BIRRB &4 (iif) 152 - 180 - - - - - 332

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent BahEL (i) 152 - 180 - - - - - )

Dr. Xue Quan HREL (iii) 152 - 180 - - - - - Kkl

Total for 2015 “E-hEEH 925 5,626 790 934 270 - 1,650 - 10,195

Notes: BiaE -

0) Estimated money values of other benefits include rent paid, share 0) HtEMNNGEIESEEREE AR
options, insurance premium and club memberships. & BRE REEREHMEE -

(i) Appointed on 4 November 2015. (i) R-Z—AF+—ANAEERE-

(i)~ Resigned on 4 November 2015. Giii) R-ZT—AF+—AMABHE -

(iv)  Appointed on 18 October 2016. vy RZZE—A"F+ATN\BEZE-

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived ER - TRAR BRI AEEEERE

any emoluments during the year (2015: Nil). FABES (—E—FE : &\) o

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\‘/T\

B MR T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 22 May 2015, the Company entered into the disposal agreement
(as supplemented on 7 August 2015), pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to sell the equity interests of a group of
subsidiaries and associates to Dragon Fortune International Limited,
a former controlling shareholder of the Company, at a consideration
of HK$169,800,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on
7 October 2015. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and
the calculation of the loss on disposal, are set out in note 43(b).

15.

16.

il

BEEN R ER (E)

(b) EERXSH  RUIASHHWEKX
e

BriR e IS RARM 47 FTIEEE S
L N 7S B 5 6 SR B B 6 T (] B i
ERBARRBREPRINT RARE
ERERER WETERAREKES
EARENBRAKRERENEME
ARG~ RHEREH -

ERIEERS

NRZTE—RAFRA-Z+=H " KRAFFL
tERBEMN -_E—RENALEHR)
Bt ARFRERERAA TZ%%%&
HEEZ2EEERARMNE —EHEB AR

NS d g ﬁFﬁ69%omm%n
((HEFE]) - HEFHEERZT—AF
TAtHEEK - FIEEEERABBEARD
EEB 2 E 2 FBERKIE430b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE —F—NF+_-_A=+—HIFFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 16. EARIELEFEE(E)
2015
—B—REF —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FETT
Loss for the year from BRILREERCFEEE
discontinued operations:
Revenue WA 380,512
Cost of goods sold SHERA (326,404)
Gross profit ESVY 54,108
Other income Hidg A 15,187
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DY (47,401)
Administrative expenses THEA (80,294)
Other operating expenses Hibez & A (18,676)
Loss from operations 4R 1R (77,076)
Finance costs B & A AN (4,801)
Share of profit of an associate G — R EE & R Al F 29
(81,848)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEMBA 72 B8 (A7 43b)) (2,071)
Income tax credit e i 4,487
Loss for the year from BRIMHEEER 2 FEEEB
discontinued operations (79,432)
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIMEEER 2 FEER
operations include the following: BRETEIE -
Depreciation and amortisation ITE KBS 10,935
Auditor’s remuneration =B RN 2,278
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERIEREEB2RERE ¢
Net cash outflows from operating activities 4% 58) 2 30 & i FE (13,909)
Net cash outflows from investing activities  1%& &8 2R & mH FEE (4,314)
Net cash outflows from financing activities  gt&EE) 2 IR &7 L IF5E (787)
Net cash outflows e M FE (19,010)
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17.

DIVIDENDS 17.

s
2016 2015
—B—REF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER F&TT
2014 Final of HK$0.015 per ordinary share ~ —Z—[4&EKREA
BIREBIX0.0158 7T - 6,176
18.  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. R (EER) &BF

REFBECEXEBRCRIEEEER
FREAREEERIZ T AHE

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on

the following:

2016
—B-AE

2015
—E-hHEF
HK$:000
F&TT

HK$°000
TR

B8

Loss

RARFTEESRERR

Loss attributable to owners of the Company,

used in the basic and diluted loss per share — BEEEE 2 RN ATHES A
calculation FE(E BT (82,646) (1,844)
Number of shares — Basic BE—E R

2015

—E-—hF

(Restated)

(&=75)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BEETEER 495,531,140 411,714,000

Effect of exercise of share options ITIFEERE & - 8,798,272

Effect of issue from placing (note 39(ii)) FIBBLERIT 2L (K3 393) - 74,241,096

Effect of share subdivision by =% 4,459,780,260  4,459,780,260
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BAREHER+=—A=+—HEK

for the purpose of calculating basic B (ER),/BFz nkE
(loss)/earnings per share at 31 December 15 5 A I R 4,955,311,400  4,954,533,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE
18. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 18. ik (E18)/ BF (&)
Number of shares — Diluted e — @
—E—hF
(Restated)
(&=751)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR:ER+-_B=+—H
for the purpose of calculating basic BREX(BR) &z
(loss)/earnings per share at 31 December DN S35 3 3 AR AR B 4,955,311,400  4,954,533,628
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares KARBITHIREEEZ
arising from share options issued BEEEL R TE
by the Company - 20,127,240
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BREER+=—A=+—H
for the purpose of calculating diluted R (BB, Bz
(loss)/earnings per share at 31 December DN S35 3 AR AR B 4,955,311,400  4,974,660,868
No diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued BMERY T - A AFRHELERDRIEL
operations are presented in 2016 as the Company did not have any BEBNSRESEE  AARATRZK
dilutive potential ordinary shares during the year. FEBRBETMEEHELBR -
From continuing operations REFESEEK
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share SECEER 2 BRAAREE(BR), /&
from continuing operations is based on the following: MIBREBE T 5 E -
2016 2015
= —T—h%F
HK$7000 HK$'000
THET FETT
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of T ESEREER
calculating basic (loss)/earnings per share  GREA (EE) B =S
from continuing operations 2 (BR),/&BF (82,646) 40,520
The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as TEEREAREE(BE) BFERE
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per > B By 38 AR N AR 25 S0 ERE _E SCE B AR
share are the same as set out above. @ °
No diluted (loss)/earnings per share from continuing operations are BMEZY — T - RNFRFELEEENER
presented in 2016 as the Company did not have any dilutive #E(FiE) /B BAEXARREANH
potential ordinary shares during the year. MBS L @R -
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18.  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 18. E(EB)/ BFI(E)
From discontinued operations RECKRIEEEETRE
Basic loss per share from discontinued operations in 2015 is HK0.855 TE-RFERIEEEEENERENES
cents. Basic loss per share calculation is based on the loss in 2015 /5085581l - BIREAREIE 2FTE TR
from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the B_E—RAFARNAHEEARMERLEE
Company of approximately HK$42,364,000 and the denominators LR 2 FEE1E 442,364,000 7T & BT
used are the same as those detailed above. PRz HEE EXESIEER -
Diluted loss per share from discontinued operations in 2015 is T RFERIEREER  BREES
HKO0.852 cents. Diluted loss per share calculation is based on the loss B50852781(l - FIREEEE ZFTE IR
for 2015 from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of B_E—RAFARRHEEARMERLEL
the Company of approximately HK$42,364,000 and the LR FEE1E 442,364,000 7% T & FT
denominators used are the same as those detailed above. FERzHFE EXXEHSERR -
19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ - HENMKE
Plant,
machinery,
Land and Leasehold ~ mouldsand  Furniture and Motor
buildings  improvements tools equipment vehicles
HEXE HE #8-
1HRET IR HARIE GHRRHE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL BT BT BT TAL
Cost or valuation RASEE
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-A-A 47,350 10,439 137911 22,49 2516 200,711
Additions BE = 13,684 10,115 2,141 127 26,067
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(0)  HEMBAR(HZ43(b) (23,710) (1,614) (8,601) (11,601) (810) (46,336)
Elimination of accumulated depreciation  Z3t4TEH (936) - - - - (936)
Galn on property revaluation nESENE 4,236 - - - - 4,236
Disposals ik - - (933) (747 (824) (2,504)
Written off A - (4928) (1,110) (20) - (6,059)
Exchange differences ERES (240) (989) (3,790) (754) ®3) (5,816)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+-A=1—H
1 January 2016 k=Z-7E-R-H 26,700 16,592 133,591 11,514 966 189,363
Additions BE - 1,455 4,428 938 776 1,597
Elimination of accumulated depreciation 25+ & & (1,068) - - - - (1,068)
Galn on property revaluation nESENE 668 - - - - 668
Disposals HE - - (2,808) - (749) (3,557)
Written off s - - - (2,525) - (2,525)
Exchange differences ERES - (1,078) (4,878) (313) (14) (6,283)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+-A=1-R 26,300 16,969 130333 9,614 979 184,195
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19. M BENMKRE(E)
Plant,
machinery,
Land and Leasehold mouldsand  Furniture and Motor
buildings  improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
BENE HE #8-
THRET IR HERIE GRRRE RE &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL Tan TaL Tan TAL TAL
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-n%5-f-H - 6,285 94,632 13,068 1676 115,661
Charge for the year FEEA 936 2,687 15,230 3,557 139 22,549
Elimination on revaluation SfhHE (936) = = = = (936)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b) ~ HEMBAR (HF43(0)) - (509) 2,738) (6,461) (253) (9.961)
Written back on disposals HERD - (4.991) (416) (83) - (5,490)
Disposal e - - (608) (330) 74) (1,680)
Exchange differences EXZEE - (351) (2,260) (317) (19) (2,947)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-R4%+-A=+-R
1 January 2016 k=E-~E-F-H - 31 103,340 9,434 801 117,196
Charge for the year FEEA 1,068 4112 10,728 1,067 286 17,261
Elimination on revaluation SfhHE (1,068) - - - - (1,068)
Written back on disposals HERD - - - (2,518) - (2,518)
Disposal L& - - (2,664) - (749) (3,413)
Exchange differences ERZE - (324) (3,589) (244) (6) (4,163)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—r¥+-A=1-H - 6,909 108,315 7,739 3R 123,295
Carrying amount RAE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—rF+-A=1-H 26,300 10,060 22,018 1875 647 60,900
At 31 December 2015 RZE-14+-A=1-H 26,700 13471 29,751 2,080 165 72,167
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19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s land and buildings is analysed as follows:

BB
HH#

In Hong Kong
Leasehold

19.

Y - BB MEE(8)
REER LI REFHFMT -

2016
—E—RE

2015
—ET-hHF
HK$ 000
T

HK$°000
TET

26,300 26,700

The Group’s land and buildings in Hong Kong were revalued at 31
December 2016 and 2015 on the open market value basis by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties by Multiple Surveyors & Consultants Limited, an
independent firm of chartered surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group’s land and buildings would have
been approximately HK$2,880,000 (2015: HK$3,214,000) had they
been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired an
investment property at a consideration (including transaction cost)
of HK$55,575,000. A fair value loss of HK$18,345,000 was
recognised during the year (note 13). Subsequently, the investment
property was disposed of and the Group did not hold any
investment property as at 31 December 2016.

20.

DTS E LR BT
TERAMESERUMERER ST
BERE R-FT-AFR-T—HF
ToAST-AEEAREREE 2L
RIEFHAHDE -

3z B AR Rt E MR BRI - A
B i RIEFHERMEEFE 542,880,000
BT (ZE—HAF : 3214,000%7T) °

wKEYE
WEE-Z—RE+-_B=+—HItFE
AN EE @ LA 55,575,000 8 T (B IER S A)
R E U HE —TRIR B Y2 < 18,345,000 57T
WAFEBEBRFEREREZ) - K
% ZEBREVEEHELE  RAKERZ
E—ARFE+_A=+—BUIEFHFEME
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— N NF+_-A=+—HI-FE

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21, FANHERIE
The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent AEBRIEMN T HEEFBENEZSEAN
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are KEHENRMEREFEE  EofuT :

analysed as follows:

2016 2015

—E—XRE —EF-—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 3,887 7,001
Cancellation of operating lease contract BUHEEHESY - (7,001)
Additions BE - 4,515
Exchange differences PE R =% (225) -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TBAs 4= H#b 78 & 1< 2k 5 (615) (628)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 3,047 3,887
Current portion BNERER > (615) (628)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL 2,432 3,259
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the old operating lease BHE—E—FAEt+-_A=+—HIEE "
contract was cancelled and refunded in full. ENKSHEAANDBEEBREERE -
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22. GOODWILL 22. BE
Greenware CGU
within
GAEMS CGU Distribution of
within GPT  Communications
segment Products segment
BEEERETA PEHBARER
PIHIGAEMS A HBHARE R
BEE4EN BEEAEN b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THr AT
Cost 2N
At 1 January 2015 N-_E-—hF—HF—H 12,157 456 12,613
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEWRBAR (it 430)) (12,157) (456) (12,613)
At 31 December 2015, 1 January R-E-h%+-A=+-8"
2016 and 31 December 2016 TR E-R-BK
TR Et+-A=1+—H = = =
Accumulated impairment losses 2t RERR
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H 9,142 = 9,142
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEWBAT (AE430b)) (9,142) - (9,142)
At 31 December 2015, 1 January R-ZE-—RF+-A=+—H"
2016 and 31 December 2016 ZE-R¥-A-BRk
“E-XEt+-A=t—"H = = =
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-A=1+—H - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—R%&+-A=+—H - - -

R—BEXHaHF TRENAERKER S
EEBRRZEBEHIENRESELE
fr([REEEBEM]) -

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination.
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

23 BREEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

License Customer
Trademarks rights relationship Patents  Technologies
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d) (note e) Total
g i @t
(Wta)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL
Cost RA
At 1 January 2015 R_E-RF—F—H 18,087 37,382 32,104 17,152 3571 108,296
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b))  HEMBAR (Azt430)) (17,013) - (18,058) (17,152) (3514) (55,737)
Exchange differences EHED (1,074) - (339) - (57) (1,470)
At 31 December 2015 and R=ZE-74%+=-F=+-H
1 January 2016 R=E—7F-A-H - 37,382 13,707 - - 51,089
Adjustment to cost due to RAKETmAZHKA
contract amendment - (4,924) - - - (4,924)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~ETZA=T-H - 32,458 13,707 - - 46,165
Accumulated amortisation and RiBER
impairment losses BEFE
At1 January 2015 RZZ-H1E-A-R 112 24,565 24,648 13,579 2,260 65,164
Amortisation for the year EEEH - 3,204 2936 3,216 877 10233
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b) ~ HEMBAR (Af430)) (103) - (13,674) (16,795) (3.129) (33,700)
Impairment loss HEER - 3,500 - - - 3,500
Exchange differences EHEE 9) - (203) - 9 (221)
At 31 December 2015 and W-E-1F+-f=1-H
1 January 2016 R=E—7E-f-H - 31,269 13,707 - - 44,976
Amortisation for the year EREH - 1,189 - - - 1,189
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-~ETZA=T-H - 32,458 13,707 - - 46,165
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 R-E—R"E+-fA=1-A - - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-REFZA=1T-H - 6,113 - - - 6,113
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23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

©

(C))

(e)

The Group’s trademarks registration protect the design and specification of the
Group’s “TrekStor”, “Maestro”, “Rydeen” and “Falcom” trademarks, and were
assessed to have indefinite useful lives.

License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of
certain manufactured business phones in the U.S.A. and Canada. The remaining
useful live of the license rights is 2 years (2015: 3 years).

The license rights would expire in 31 December 2018. The Group is required to
pay license fee to the licensor based on agreed percentage of revenue subject
to agreed annual minimum guaranteed license fee increased progressively
throughout the license period. On 6 August 2016, the licensor agreed to revise
the following terms of the license rights: (i) waive certain cumulative
outstanding license fee up to 31 December 2015; and (ii) reduce the annual
minimum guaranteed license fee for the year 2016 to 2018. The fair value of the
license rights payable based on the renegotiated terms was amounted to
HK$6,592,000 at 6 August 2016. To account for the renegotiated terms, the
carrying amount of the license rights payable was adjusted by HK$21,293,000,
the carrying amount of the license rights intangible assets was adjusted by
HK$4,924,000 to nil and the difference of HK$16,369,000 was recognised as a
gain on license rights contract amendment (note 10).

Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship was 3-6 years.

Patents represent certain registered patents and patents under registration
process in relation to design and utility of the portable gaming console. The
amortisation period of patents was 4 years.

Technologies represent GPS and modem technologies. The Group has offered
several GPS and modem product for wireless tracking applications. The
amortisation period of technologies was 3 years.

The Group carried out review of the recoverable amount of its
remaining intangible assets (license rights) which was used in the
Group’s Distribution of Communications Products segment. In 2015,
an impairment loss of HK$3,500,000 for the license rights was
recognised. The recoverable amount of relevant CGU was HK$19.4
million in 2015 and was determined on the basis of the value-in-use.
The discount rate used in 2015 was 22.49%.

23.

/MH/ §}X (nE)
(@ & B HE R F MR E H[TrekStor] -

(b)

©

(@)

)

[Maestro] * [Rydeen] % [Falcom] 1% & &t &
BIE - LT EE - HA A F T E R o

R EXBE R NEAEEE TREEEK M
B2 A [RCA] RMRHORER o 45 37 RE M) IR (2 1
HRA2F(ZT—RF :3F) -

BHRER=_Z—\F+t-A=t—HEm - &
& BB TERASE D A A S
& (RIRA T IR R WL ey 1 B S AR I
REFTIRE) - RZZT—RFE/\NAXB  BEA
BIEERIATRRIER : OREEE=_F 5
F+-A=+—RBItMET R REEITIE
E:RMHWBRE-Z—R"EE_T—)\ENEFE
RIEERSTESR - DEREH T GaEE
R R AFER =S —AENAXE

746,592,000 7T, © IBIR B H R E 2 IR FaT
T FE A< R A BR T (B 58 B8 21,293,000 4 7T + HF a4

EIVAENRMER4924000 B THEEZTE
7T }16,369,000 B LY = HHER RIS REK
fErTHER (FiIRE10) ©

EFAREEEBAMHAEARP REBEEE
AR AR B E A R R R E NS - BEEAIER
MEHARIEGCHF -

e R R AR A TR
R RHUREMBIZH OEF - SROMEHA
4% o

BT 2 IRERL R (GPS) RIVAALHIT - A&
B ph AR IRME AR R T 2REM RGN
{LER - BATEHEHEAIFE -

AEBERMB TELEE FHE) 2K

A= ﬁﬁﬁ”‘$‘ilﬂ’] D HBAERD
e R —_T—HF ﬁﬁw%uﬂg}ﬁiﬁﬁﬂa

3,500, ooo,%rc AR eELS

SN

—RFEHAKE L E A 9,400,000;%71 :

DiIEREEEE —F—

HEMAITER

R 502.49% o
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 24. AHTBARIRKRE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Unlisted investment, at cost JELETMIRE - IR 6 3
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free fEd (FERT) B A RIFIBAEEE - %
and have no fixed terms of repayment. BRERTERE -
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: RZE—R"F+ZA=+—HNBAAF
1BEAE :
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EEEEREES RERE/
HEL R AR HMBRY,/ RyBE SRTREZRA HEBREILE TEER
Direct Indirect
B i
China Khan Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EBBRAR (‘BV.I”) of US$1 each REER
RERUHE 100k ERAEEIET
([RBEX V& B
#5))
Captain Ace Limited B.V.I 100 ordinary shares 100% - Inactive
HBRIHE of US$1 each EmEK
100 B RmEE
1ETHEER
Charm Year International Limited ~ B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
BlIFEBRABR AR HEREUHES of US$1 each BEER
100 S REE
1ETHEBER
Fortune Cycle Investments B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
Limited HBREIAHE of US$1 each KBER
100 RS REE
1ETHEBER
Grant Global Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Inactive
HBEIAHS of US$1 each BEET
100 RS REE
1ETHEBER
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RHIBARIAIRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: R-ZT—RE+_A=+—HHBAR:F
(Continued) BT - (4&)
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EERaRER REE/
il PNGiES EMRYL/ B EETRAZRE HERANEIT TEXR
Direct Indirect
B CiE:
Pacific Time Holdings Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
RBEREIHE of US$1 each BEER
100 R EREE
1ETRE AR
Powerled Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
BEEERAH RBREIHE of US$1 each BEER
100 Rk BREE
1ETHE AR
ValueCatch Global Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
HEHS US$1 each L
1REREE
1RTHE AR
ValueCatch Global Fund Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
One Limited HERS US$1 each L
1REREE
1RTHE AR
ValueCatch Global Fund Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Inactive
One CIP Limited REHE US$1 each EEE
1REREE
1RTHE R
Winning Global Holdings Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Inactive
HERUES of US$1 each BEEK
100 R EREE
1RTHE R
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RHIBARIAIRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: R-ZE—RE+_A=+—HHBARF
(Continued) BT - (4&)
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EERaRER REE/
il PNGiES EMRYL/ B EETRAZRE HERABEIL TEXR
Direct Indirect
B CiE:
Able Trend Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 85%  Provision of
KBEREBRATR &b of HK$10,590 consultancy
10,590 T /) & Mk and design services
and trading of
electronic
components
AR R &
RIEARETF
THES
Aiko Products Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Trading of electrical
NHERERDA 55 of HK$10,000 appliances,
10,0008 7oy 8 A% provision
of consultancy and
agency services
EREH - Rt
B IR R
B. Kettner Products Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - 100%  Trading of beauty care
Hong Kong Limited A5 18R B products
EREANMAmBRAR XAREERES
Bracciano Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Investment holding
EBRIES US$1 each REER
1REREE
1R E R
Circuit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Property investment
BE HK$10,000 MERE
10,000 & TTHE EAR
China Finance Service Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ZECRREARAR BB LETHEER REER
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. R BRTIHIRE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

(Continued) BaT (&)

Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing
EERaRER REE/
HEARERE HMAY RuBE CDRTRAZRA HERANEIT
Direct Indirect
i %
China Healthcare Partners Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100%
Limited HEis US$1 each
1REREE
1ETEER
Dayshine Global Investments B.V.I. 1 ordinary share - 100%
Limited HERUHE of US$1 each
1REREE
1ETREER
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%
BEEXBRAA Bk 18R EE
Gabrio International Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of = 100%
EBRIHE US$1 each
1R EREE
1ETHLER
Idea Perfect Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 = 100%
EREREBRLA B 1B L@
Keenpro Investments Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of - 100%
BREEERAE REREIHE US$1 each
1REREE
1ETMEER
Modern Channel Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 55%
RBHBRAR Bk HK$10,000

10,000 78 7o Ay & 38 A%

-
=
&)

R=Z—AF+=A=t+—BHBAFHF

Principal activities

TEEHR

Inactive

LEXG

Inactive

LEXG

Investment holding

REZE

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

REZB

Development of
electronic medical
devices

REETERRE

Annual Report 3 2016 141



e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:
(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and

Name of subsidiary paid up capital

MR B

WEAREM ERTRAZRE

Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
FEERAR B0 HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7T
iok=3 Tl
Sota Acoustics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
HEZEBRAA e 1AL BER
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of
EmERAT RERIHE US$1 each
1REREE
1ETEER
Telefield Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
FELRERAT A5 1AL ER
Telefield Holdings Limited B.V.I. 410,000 ordinary shares of
HBRIHE US$1 each
410,000 kB EE
1R B
Telefield Japan Inc. Japan Share capital of
=R JPY9,500,000
F% 759,500,000 B
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24.

R BRARINKRE

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/

profit sharing

ElEREREES RER/

HERANEIT
Direct Indirect
i %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal activities

TEEHR

Investment holding
and trading
REERRES

Trading and
development of
professional audio
equipments

EXEERMBE
BH L%

Inactive

LEXG

Investment holding

RERB

Investment holding

REZE

EMS marketing and
agency services

BT LR
HHEER
RIERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RIBRARIAIRE (8)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: R-ZT—RE+_A=+—HHBAR:F
(Continued) BT - (4&)
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EERaRER REE/
il PNGiES EMRYL/ B EETRAZRE HERABEIL TEXR
Direct Indirect
B CiE:
Telefield Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 85%  Trading and provision
REEERRAERAA B HK$700,000 of EMS agency
700,000 7 o0 8 R services
B RREET
SUERBRIE
R
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding,
HEERAT & HK$20,000,000 and electronic
non-voting deferred manufacturing
shares of HK$5,000,000 services for
20,000,000 & 7THY telecommunications,
LEFAR 5,000,000 security, car
BITHELTE electronics, home
BT appliances, other
consumer and
industrial electronic
products

LR B3
R% AEET
B RE

HiHE RIS
EFEMMNET
SUEIRTS
Telefield Medical Devices Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Trading of personal
hERBESMARAR BB HK$1,000 care products
1,000 78 7o Ry L @ A% BAEBERES
Telefield Medical Imaging Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 55%  Development of
FERENEERAR B HK$1,000,000 electronic medical
1,000,000 TR devices
Timik ETEERERR
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24. RIBRARMIEE (8)

R-B—AF+-A=+—BHBAAR
BT : ()

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:
(Continued)

Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
establishment paid up capital profit sharing

EihERRER REE/

Name of subsidiary Principal activities

MR B

WEAREE

ERTRAZRE

7~ ?—/ﬁll.*u E -\tt
Indirect

&

TEEHR

Telefield Sales, LLC US.A. Share capital of US$25,000 100%  Trading of beauty care
X8 AR 25,000 3% 7T products
EAREERES
Telefield NA Inc. USA. Share capital of 100%  Trading of business
e 1S$2,000,000 telephone system
F% 782,000,000 7T BEBRZRES
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding
RERNBRAT B HK$15,600,000 and trading of
15,600,000 78 7Y telecommunication
L@ products
&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&& E&ujf
EmES
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Inactive
wEETARAT B 1B ER TEEK
Wise State Investment Ltd Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Investment holding
BHEEBRLA e BT ER REER
BEREE (RN ER AT PRC Registered capital of 100%  Trading of appliances
Alko Beauty (Shenzhen) F HK$1,000,000 THRES
Limited (Note) FMAER
1,000,000/ 7T
EMNFEEFERAT PRC Registered capital of 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield H S$8,060,000 telecommunications
Limited (Note) AR and other products
8,060,000 7T A REM
EmiRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —ZF—

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

BMAHEETERAF
Guangzhou Zhong Sui
Limited (Note)

B2 EBHERBRAT
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics
Co., Limited (Note)

EXERZH (R BRRA

EXBEZER (R BRRA

EXERAERE (BRI ERAF

EXRERE (R BRAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

MR B

PRC
FE

PRC
FE

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

PRC
PE

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRAZRE

Registered capital of
US$1,500,000

FMER
1,500,000 57T

Registered capital of
US$2,000,000

FMER
2,000,000% 7T

Registered capital of
RMB300,000,000

AfERARE
300,000,0007C

Registered capital of
RMB500,000,000

EMERARE
500,000,0007C

Registered capital of
RMB5,000,000

AMERARE
5,000,000 7T

Registered capital of
RMB500,000,000

AMERARE
500,000,000 7T

RITBARHIRE (8)

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/

profit sharing

ElEREREES RER/

HERANEIT
Direct Indirect
i %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

TEEHR

Manufacture and sale
of consumable
electronic products

HEETEMM
S RIHE

Inactive

LEXG

Inactive

LEXK

Investment holding

REER

Factoring business
RIRRBER

Inactive

TEXS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

24, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RHBARIMERE (B)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: RZZE—R"F+_A=+—HHRBRRF
(Continued) BaT (&)
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElEREREES RER/
il NGRS HMAY RuBE CDRTRAZRA HERFEIL TEEK
Direct Indirect
BE &
REESIHASRBYE  PRC Registered capital of - LIOSE nachi
BR AT R RMB30,000,000 EEE
AERARE
30,000,000 7T
AP ERELEREELEE  PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
BRAT R RMB10,000,000 BEET
AMERARE
10,000,000 7T
Note: English names for identification purpose. Bfat : RXBEHRBIPE -
All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned FrEEFBKAMEB AR AINEEE
enterprises. -
As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s RZZE—R"FT+ZA=1+—8 ' A&EEHNF
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to BIFT B A RIAARBEHEMRIT RIS A8
approximately HK$40,332,000 (2015: HK$23,899,000). Conversion /A #940332000% Tw( = & — A F:
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign 23,899,000787T) ° AR K BINEES
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, FRBISNE B IR 1K) R A TE - SR R EEE
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. FRTERVFRBR ©
25. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 25. R—E&aLrENKE
2016 2015
—E—XE —ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong: BAEMI LTS -
Share of net assets E(EEEFRE - =
Amount due from a joint venture JEW—RE & DER - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —ZF—

25. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2016 is as

follows:

Place of
incorporation
o R 3Ltk 2

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

25. M—EEEERNIKRE (&)

R-_ZE—RNF+-_A=+—HAEENHE
ERENFBOT

Issued and
paid up capital
ERTRHBERAE

Percentage of
ownership interest
hEEEERE DL
2016 2015
—B-AF _FTIF

Principal activities

FTEXK

Groovio Company Hong Kong
Limited B

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amount of Groovio Company Limited that are accounted for using

the equity method.

At 31 December:

Carrying amounts of interests

400,000 ordinary share 50% 50%  Trading of audio based
of US$1 each products

400,000 iR TR EE SHHEMEER
1ETHE B

TRINTAEBEA EDEEERSEARS
Groovio Company Limited B3R IE o

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FE&T T 7T
R+=—A=+—-8:
AR {E - -

Year ended 31 December:

BE+t-A=1+—-RLEFE:

Loss after tax BrTfi2 518 7 (669)
Other comprehensive income Hap 2wl - -
Total comprehensive income 2EWA LS 7 (669)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
a joint venture, Groovio Company Limited, because the share of
losses of joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in the joint
venture and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of this
joint venture for the current year and cumulatively were HK$7,000
(2015: HK$552,000) and HK$559,000 (2015: HK$552,000),
respectively.

AEEERIIERESH—HEEE
Groovio Company Limited & 18 - T3 A S 14
ZAEECEBRRRASERZAELE
2R MASEBY S IAELMBEE -
RAEE  NEBIABERDIEZAED
¥EBE MEBESES R AR7,000E8T(=
Z — R F : 552,000 T ) K& 559,000/ 7T
(ZZ—FA%F : 552,000/87T) °

Annual Report &3k 2016 147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. AIEHEEESREE
2016 2015
—B—REF —T—RF
HK$7000 HK$000
TExT FETT

Equity securities, at fair value BAFES  HAFE

Listed in Hong Kong REB LM 130,224 -
130,224 -

The fair values of available-for-sale financial assets are based on
quoted closing prices at the end of the reporting period. All
available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HKD.

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets recognized in the other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$33,657,000 (2015: Nil), of which
HK$25,600,000 (2015:Nil) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss for the year in view of
certain listed equity securities were impaired during the year due to
prolonged decline of market price below their costs.

A ESREEZ A TFEDRERSEH
RZHABPTHEME - 2HAIEEESH
BEEIAETTAE °

FARAKENAHEESREEZE

A H Ath 2 W 25 HE R 33,657,000 8 7T (=
T—RF: &) HA25600,000F (=
T—RF ) REMEMKFETOES

FAEE lkthEEE’\?:i.jFLmHﬁZIS GRS
FRRE - REZMERBENERR

27. INVENTORIES 27. 8
2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
HK$7000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Raw materials Ea 33,740 43,254
Work in progress e s 19,458 31,322
Finished goods BIRY Th 41,619 49,653
Goods in transit TEED 6,048 6,031
100,865 130,260
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND RECEIVABLES FOR 28. BRIWEZRANERRMBESIE
FACTORING BUSINESS W kI8
2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Trade receivables W E HER 0) 122,639 173,936
Allowance for trade receivables B E Z R (5,197) (4,614)
117,442 169,322
Receivables for factoring business ZOR RN E 2 R GRIE M) 14,551 -
131,993 169,322
(i) Trade receivables () EHREZERX
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on AEEHERFFEUMEEFNETE
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. B FEEH—MNFI0OKREROK -
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For new HERFHAERREERE - #MIEF
customers, payment in advance is normally required. The —MRZETEN A - AEEB Y H &K
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding U (5] B MR TR TE M BRAR BE TR - BB E
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the HiER B E B4 AR ©
directors.
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice HREE O A E U 5 BE 2K (R
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BYERSFIT :
2016 2015
—E—REF —EF-hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FETT
0 to 90 days 0Z 90K 109,777 157,997
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 4,426 10,132
181 to 365 days 181 & 365 X 682 210
Over 365 days 365 KA E 2,557 983
117,442 169,322
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND RECEIVABLES FOR 28. EWESRANERBESZE
FACTORING BUSINESS (Continued) WskIA (88)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EWREZRI(E)

e E B IR R BB LRI T

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

2016 2015
—E2—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET T
At 1 January R—H—H 4,614 3,314
Allowance for the year FEREE 583 4,966
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - (1,054)
Bad debts written off M H R AR - (2,612)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 5,197 4,614

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

18751 5% 1 M B2 55 i o B e e 7 745 R
HIEREENRZETF REHEX
W el FIRERE

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately BE—_ZE—XRFt-_A=1+—8 &
W B 5 B8R 3K 4920,303,0008 . (==
— R 4 : 30,318,000/ 7t) B # H1E
WARRIE o L FREE Z Bk )L A
B REHNZEBIETEAME - it
ERWE ZERFNRRAITAT ¢

HK$20,303,000 (2015: HK$30,318,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. An aging
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015

—E—XREF —ET-hHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Up to 3 months % R3EA 17,003 28,048
Over 3 months SEAKE 3,300 2,270
20,303 30,318

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

REE W E iR 2 AR EE A A

denominated in the following currencies: Tk :
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
usbD ETT 114,893 168,393
HKD BT 26 73
RMB AR 2,519 856
Others Hifb 4 -
Total a5t 117,442 169,322
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND RECEIVABLES FOR 28 RWNEZRANTERMBESLIE

FACTORING BUSINESS (Continued) WskIA (88)

(i) Receivables for factoring business (i) FRBBEKZEWRRE
At the end of reporting period, all receivables for factoring RIREHFR @ FEREUBEEATE R
business were repayable within one year and denominated in REER—FAEERAARE ST
RMB. g -
The Group has a credit risk assessment team to approve the AEEHEES L EERBRTHERA
maximum limit of factoring facility granted to each customer. ﬁt/ﬁﬁx%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi@ﬁ@%%ﬁ
The Group also strictly monitor the interest repayment and B o NG B TP ER IR S ER R G IE R A
credit quality of the receivables until maturity. There was no BEEREEEESEEIE - RikE
overdue receivables as at end of reporting period. No Hﬁﬂilﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ’i”& RIH - ANEEE
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these SWEBLEEAEE  WHEREL
receivables as there has not been a significant change in credit FEUFRIBIE R B -
quality.

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ~ 29. FERIFKIE - & R EMEWEIE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —FT—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Prepayments JE B 5,853 3,292
Prepaid lease payments FE A E 08 615 628
Deposits i g 3,864 3,734
Refundable deposit (note (i) ARER]® (MfaE () 140,000 -
Purchase deposits BEZe 1,587 3,972
Other receivables H fth e Y zk18 2,964 3,208
154,883 14,834
Note (i): Bz (D) -
The Group has entered into a memorandum of understanding on 22 June 2016 for R-E—AREXNAZ+=-B AEERA—ZEH(E
acquisition of a target group from a vendor (the “Vendor”). The Group paid a refundable FDKEEZEETY —BRRETH - AEERE S
amount of HK$140 million (the “Refundable Deposit”) as earnest money to the Vendor. XA R B 5] £ 140,000,0008 T ([ARERI £ ) EA
Share of certain target group companies were charged in favour of the Group as WEL HTHEEEARNRMNHERTFAEE - £
collateral to secure the repayment obligation of the Deposit. The Deposit was fully ARBERETSHEM - TN =T —+F—AWMA
refunded on 4 January 2017. BREURE -

Annual Report &3 2016 151



e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bt —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 30.

At fair value BAFE
Currency options — assets Bl - B E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2015
—hfF

HK$’000
FERT

HK$'000
TAT

- 798

The Group utilises currency options to mitigate foreign currency
exposure of purchases denominated in foreign currencies. However,
as at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any currency option
in place.

The fair value of the Group’s currency options is based on the
valuation performed by an independent firm of professional valuer.
Major terms of the currency options are as follows:

AREE NI E K R R (LAINEFHE)
PREE I SNE EER - AT - R ZF—XF
T-A=1t—8 AREIEITAEEH
T o

AEENERHENATEEERBYE
EAEEMTETHMGE SEHENEE
AT -

Currency options R
(Short EUR, Long USD) (FBERT - BEZET)
Average strike exchange rate (EUR/USD)  F¥#EE R (BT, FET) - 112
Time to expiration (year) B (FE) - 0.09-0.16
Contract amounts AHeE EUR3 million
- 3,000,000 & T
31. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 3. RITNIRe LR
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET AT
Cash on hand EFR e 109 264
Cash in transit EBREREE 65 -
Cash at bank RITRE 208,052 106,943
Cash and cash equivalents in the RieBHeRERNRE
consolidated statement of cash flows EEEZEEY 208,226 107,207
Cash in margin account of a brokerage firm* —RI&4LTRBSCER VRS 67 334,000
208,293 441,207

*

The brokerage firm is a related company of the Group (note 47).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

31.  BANK AND CASH BALANCES (Continued)

The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

31.

=5

RITMR G (E)
AREE AT SIS SIERRIT IR 4

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

usD =TT 118,568 40,268
HKD BT 70,903 376,965
RMB AR 18,647 23,914
Euro ("EUR™) BT ([T ]) 69 58
Others Eph 106 2
208,293 441,207

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$40,332,000
(2015: HK$23,899,000) was kept in banks in the PRC. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,

RIZ—RFE+-_A=1+—8 KEBUA
REFERTNTRARIT RS EHR AL
40,332,000 7o ( = Z — A F : 23,899,000
BIL) o AREHIRABINEAEZHBEINEE
BIRG RAEE - SERNIESER TR

Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. PR
32. TRADE PAYABLES 2. ENESER
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as AEBREZAHFENEMNESERAD
follows: BRER DT
2016 2015
= s
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT TFETT
0 to 90 days 0Z90K 78,605 113,546
91 to 180 days 9N £180k 1,360 393
181 to 365 days 1812 365 KX 711 811
Over 365 days 365 KA E 776 1,778
81,452 116,528
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32.

33.

34,

TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

32.

FENE SR ()

AEEEN S S ER EEEE RN TE
M

2016 2015

—E-XE —E—RF

HK$7000 HK$'000

THET T T

Usb ESI 9,886 28,984
HKD BIT 17,846 75,018
RMB AR 53,672 11,860
EUR BT 48 666
Total At 81,452 116,528

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

TRIRE A R E M RN FIA

2016 2015

—E—XREF —ET-hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

AR THT

Accrued salaries THiRE & 104,565 86,919
Accrued expenses AR 40,966 42,469
Customer deposits and receipts in advance & Fix4 kiEWHRIE 9,897 10,208
Other payables Hfth fE T 5RIE 3,644 4,113
159,072 143,709

AMOUNTS DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY AND A JOINT

VENTURE

The amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

35. BORROWINGS

Loans from a substantial shareholder —

35.

KE—REBBRRZER -

2016
—E—RE

2015
“E-HF
HK$'000
TAT

HK$’000
FET

Power Port Holdings Limited Power Port Holdings Limited 59,712 =
Loans from an independent third party KE—BBILE=FTHNER 20,000 -
79,712 -

The Group’s borrowings are unsecured, denominated in HKD and
are repayable within one year.

The average effective interest rates at 31 December were as follows:

RtZA=+—RZFHER

AEENEREREERR  LUETAHERR

SIES N

RKE—REIEZRRNEEE

Non-interest bearing loans from a
substantial shareholder
Loans from an independent third party

Borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates or non-interest
bearing thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31
December 2016 approximately to their carrying amounts.

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are
analysed as follows:

36.

KH - BBIUE=THEK

30.

17.85% N/A
Sl
18% N/A
i
BERATHEHAREE  EAEEE
HATERN RS -
EEHHAEER T —AE+ A
S+ —BzEE ATEEAREEERE
EmiRAEE
AEBERRABERDHTOT -

2016 AONES)

—E—XRE —hF

HK$7000 HK$'000

THET FET

At 1 January Rn—A—AH 4,298 21,885
Provision used BE ARG (4,298) (11,833)
Additional provision SRR 3,800 11,972
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEMB AR (Kit430b)) - (16,560)
Exchange differences PEHZ=XE - (1,166)
At 31 December R+-_HA=+—8H 3,800 4,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

36. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS (Continued) 36. EmRBEE(E)
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or offer BETOHEEmE NARKREFINEUR &R -
replacement of its products to certain distributors when these AEEEBRZEDHBBLRERRIER
distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied ultimate Em - ZHEMRABREBERBERELEE
consumers. Such kind of provision for product warranties are KFRBRELERTER  WIMREZERE (D
recognised based on past experience of level of repairs and returns, @A) °

discounted to their present value as appropriate.

37. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 37. BAVEGFABRNESRAE
PROFIT OR LOSS

TrekStor

(note a) (note b)
TrekStor Fargo et

(Kizta) (KiaEb)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
At 1 January 2015 R-—_ZE—HF—HA—H 3,123 951 4,074
Transfer to other payables s H b B F0E (2,849) (307) (3,156)
Change of fair value during the year EEAF(EEH) - 709 709
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEME R T (AfiE43b)) = (1,353) (1,353)
Exchange differences &5 =58 (274) = 274)

At 31 December 2015, 1 January R-E—RHF+—-A

2016 and 31 December 2016 =t—HB —ZT—XfF

—B—RAR=-ZE—F

+ZA=+—H - - -
At 31 December 2016 and 2015 RZZE—RER

—T—RFE+—-A

==
Current liabilities mEBE = - -
Non-current liabilities EREBEE = - -

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F
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37. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

()

The contingent consideration for acquisition of TrekStor
multimedia product distribution business in 2009 is based on
20% of accumulated consolidated taxable profit of TrekStor
GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five years after acquisition

r 10% of yearly consolidated taxable profit of TrekStor GmbH
and TrekStor Limited for the five years after acquisition,
whichever is higher. The total contingent consideration is
capped at EUR500,000. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group has fixed the final consideration at
HK$2,849,000 with the vendor.

The Group acquired the Fargo communications product
distribution business on 3 October 2012 by subscribing 53% of
enlarged share capital of Fargo Telecom Group. As an integral
part of the business combination, the Group agreed to
purchase from the former controlling shareholder of Fargo
Telecom Group up to 42.3% of the enlarged share capital in 4
equal lots before 30 April 2015 (“Subsequent Acquisition
Arrangement”) with reference to the financial results of Fargo
Telecom Group. Under such Subsequent Acquisition
Arrangement, on 16 June 2014, the Group acquired 10.575% of
enlarged share capital by paying HK$614,000. The second and
third lots of shares totaling 21.15% of enlarged share capital
would be acquired by the Group on 30 April 2015. On 1 May
2014, the Group agreed with the former controlling
shareholder of Fargo Telecom Group to postpone the
purchase date of the last lot of shares (i.e. 10.575% of enlarged
share capital) under the Subsequent Acquisition Arrangement
to 30 April 2017. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group agreed with the former controlling shareholder of Fargo
Telecom Group to fix the total consideration of second and
third lots shares at HK$307,000.

37.

/N

(@

(b)

MEEFABaNEREE(E)

R ZZZT N FUHE TrekStor 2 17 48

m D HEBHHARBIREKER
F4F TrekStor GmbH & TrekStor Limited
RETARE FERT s F ) 20% sk U g 18
A F TrekStor GmbH & TrekStor
Limited 5 EAR A FERRTE 6 A1 EV10% (LA
BaER%E)TE RARELAEL
R /500,000 BT - BEZZT—HF
TZA=T—BIEFE  AEEEH
B B E R AERE - 52849,000 %
i

AEBR-_ZT——F+H=HBEBR
8% Fargo Telecom £ 8] 53% 2 & #& X
AR AS U5 B8 Fargo ATl 2= mm 9 SH 75 ©

EBEBAHZERES - REBK
2% Fargo Telecom £ B 7 B 78 2 4&
BREN-_Z—AFMHA=F+HAL
43t 48 & 17 58 IR 19 [M) Fargo Telecom
S B AT AR AR R B B & % 42.3% BV S
BARA ([1BERBLH]) - BIEZ
BEWELZYE R —NMNFA
+7XB » A& BFE B 614,000 %
T EE10.575% 2 BEHE AR AN o 5T
R215% 2 MBEBRIRAZ FE_HJRE
“HBROEHAEER =T —RFHE
A=tBKE R-_Z—MNFERA—
H - X% B B Fargo Telecom £ [ Al
TR R e R R B R R BE T /Y
B —HMEOHNEBRNBRAZ
10.575%) KU H i ZE — F — 4 Y
BA=+tH-B=-_ZT—AF+=A8
=+—BLFE  A%£EHFargo
Telecom & EATIZERBRRIBEFE =&
F=HEhefn 2 BR(BER307,000/E 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

38. DEFERRED TAX 38, IRIERIB
Accelerated License
tax Intangible rights Land and
depreciation assets payable buildings Others Total
MEHRBHE BVEE BIEEMR IRET Httr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT THET THET THET TAT THBT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—h%—A—H (1,931) (12,020) 9,498 (3,274) 2,723 (5,004)
Credit/(charge) to profit or FEBERTIA
loss for the year W%/ (B8)
— origination and reversal of  — B ERELR
temporary differences el 3 4,755 287 - 2,051 7,090
Charge to other comprehensive  EZ E At 2 Elizs T
income for the year SNAER = = = (545) = (545)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB L
(note 43(b)) (Hiat430)) 45 4,770 - - (513) 4,302
Exchange differences EREE - 173 - - - 173

At 31 December 2015 and R=ZE-1%+-A

1 January 2016 =t-HBk
“2-x"F-F—H (1,889) (2,322) 9,785 (3,819) 4,261 6,016
Credit/(charge) to profit or FEBZFRIA
loss for the year W/ (B8)
— origination and reversal -BREEES
of temporary differences & 1,879 452 467 - (601) 2,197
— renegotiation of terms of - ENEREY
intangible assets usage BERAKR - 1,870 (8,085) - - (6,215)
Credit to other comprehensive ~ FEE M2 EKET
income for the year 5 Bl - - - 66 - 66
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE
+-A=1+—-H (10) - 2,167 (3,753) 3,660 2,064
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

38.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 38, RIEFIIE (&)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT BELERE BB R BB E TR I8 4 54
consolidated statement of financial position purposes: DT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Deferred tax assets R IEE B 5,827 14,046
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (3,763) (8,030)
2,064 6,016
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RFEHER AEEESKRHAMRE
of approximately HK$18.6 million (2015: HK$7.7 million) available for &5 18 49 518600,000/8 T ( — T — A 4 :
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset in relation to 7,700,00078 70 ) + A] FA R H0 oK 2R 5& F o
unused tax losses has been recognised due to the unpredictability of FRR 2R BE TR R 2R s FI 2RR + t b £E FE R
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses BRERAHEBENREERIBEE - K
of approximately HK$0.5 million (2015: HK$0.5 million) that will AN EGEREERN S _SEfER
expire before 2020. Other tax losses may be carried forward ) 5 18 49 /& 500,000 T (Z & — 7 F -
indefinitely. 500,000 78 7T ) o H b £ 18 &5 18 o] #& R AR 4%
83 o
Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in BB AREREENRREETTERX -

subsidiaries are insignificant.

Annual Report &3k 2016

159



..-"“"'*;/ Vil

-

N ,,M'"f
“"”'ﬁ'_ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L ARE G ERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF
39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. AR
2016
A%
Number

2015
—Z-1%
Number
of shares

s

Amount
HK$'000
T

Amount
£8
HK$’000
TR

of shares
R&

Authorised: EE -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each
(2015: HK$0.01)

BREENETERR
(ZE2-1%: 0017)

160

At the beginning of the year RE] 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Increase in authorised share capital (Note (1) SAEBAE (At () 140,000,000,000 1,400,000 - -
Increase upon share subdivision (Note (1)) BRIDHFRAEEM (A5 ()) 1,350,000,000,000 - - -
1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEATRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE AT L AR
(2015: HK$0.01) (ZZ-1F  0018T)

At the beginning of the year RET] 495,531,140 4,955 411,714,000 4117

Shares isstied under placing (Note (i) BREEETRG (Wit () - - 79,700,000 797

Shares issued under share option scheme  {RIZEERR L 21 BTRA - - 4,117,140 |

Increase upon share subdivision (Note ()~ BRI EM (A2 () 4,459,780,260 - - -

4,955,311,400 4,955 495,531,140 4,955

Note: BiZE -

0) On 31 March 2016, the shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary 0) RZT—ARE=ZA=1+—8  ARFABREB—
resolution to approve the increase of the authorised share capital of the BEBARAZR HHEART EZERAH
Company from 10,000,000,000 shares to 150,000,000,000 shares and the 10,000,000,000 A% 3 41 Z 150,000,000,000 A%
subdivision of each of the existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each ARARRBRARGREER0OIBTZEER
in the capital of the Company into 10 subdivided shares of HK$0.001 each with 1T RAR BT AR D TR 40 & + IR = A T 8 4 0.001
effect from 1 April 2016. B2 FARD BT ANFENA—BE4E

o o
All issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other. EHEBRTRONS T EHHEEMBEEHITROHEAS
B &L o
(D) On 9 November 2015, the Company entered a placing agreement with Kingston (D) R-ZE—FRFE+—ANA  AATESF|@HAL

Securities Ltd (the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, up to 79,700,000
placing shares at price of HK$2.44 per placing share. The placing was completed
on 27 November 2015 and the net proceeds from placing was approximately
HK$189,460,000, after deducting direct issuing cost of HK$5,008,000.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7

BRAA((ERERE DT EERZ - Bt - &
RABEKRHEREEBARERERERS
79,700,000 IR EL & AR 17 -+ E(E A ERECE IR D
2447 - RESHER=_T—AF+—HA=1+
BEK: MESFHEHZAERBEFENR
189,460,000/ 7T (2 Bk E #8175 25,008,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

39.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by adjusted
capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for bank
overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e.
share capital, retained earnings and other reserves) except for non-
controlling interests.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2015,
was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at reasonable
level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2016 and at
31 December 2015 were as follows:

39.

ENE=)

AEBEREANBRREESKENFR
BREkn  WEBE(LERRERER
AR SRR K (B ¥ o A 5% (B B B8 SR g £
E—FEIWEAE -

AEEZREARLHETEASHE - AKH
B e AR AR A ) S B T A R B R B
HEREAGEBAFLAR - B THFX
ABREARER  AEEAAEREHE
BITHER - BRED  SEHME - BLOR
BEBESMEEEARE °

AEERBEFHEHABREA L XERE
o LR Ty IR BER IR AR R EE ARG
o REGEEEE(RITEXRIN) - &
HABENBEMBEEDKD (AN - (RE
BN R HAb ) GRS RRIN) -

RIE—RF AEEZRBEE_T—A
FWEEE)  AEEFEHEABRERL X
HBEHRREEBKE - RZZTE—ARF+=A
=t+t—BEk=-Z—AF+_A=+—A0HW
EEEABREAR L RN ¢

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Total debt HBIE 79,712 -
Adjusted capital EREEE R 474,847 553,960
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio (BT S 4 ) B & AN L & 16.8% N/A
TE A

The increase in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio during 2016
resulted primarily from increase of borrowings.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Company to
maintain its listing status on the Main Board of Stock Exchange is
that it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
as required under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

R-Z—RF BRHEHABRBEALXE
PrI&n - =R HREEIL -

ARBREREBRDRBZ TR L
LM —AETHOINRERRER A RFFIR
EBTER25% - REARAMBHRFRAE
MERBEEMM RBE_FT—RFt+=
A=1T—RALFE AR -—BAEFHX
P E R RIFTRE R R AR RFFE
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 Forthe vear ended 31 December 2016 BiE —ZF—NFE+_A=1+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

40. ANRTEZABARRK R #ERE

@

RO Tz PR F

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—hfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB &R 86 -
Investments in subsidiaries NI ENGIE SRS = 24 6
92 %
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE YR B A B F0E 187,121 7,341
Prepayments, deposits and TEN A « e N EAMmER
other receivables FXQE] 3,298 -
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ Al &£ L& E 130,224 -
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS A5k 25,160 357,272
Total current assets RBEEHAE 345,803 364,613
Total assets EEHAE 345,895 364,616
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAE
Equity attributable to owners KARHE AEGER
of the Company
Share capital &4 4,955 4,955
Reserves @ 40(b) 256,964 358,017
Total equity EEAE 261,919 362,972
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables TEREB R & E MM FUR 4,264 1,641
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B A R F0E - 3
Borrowings ==} 79,712 -
Total current liabilities REBAGEEE 83,976 1,644
Total equity and liabilities EZLEEEE 345,895 364,616

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Gong Shaoxiang

B3 =
Director

EE

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7

Exenr—_T—tF=A-+/\BAi#L
EIHTIALTRBERE

Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
THE
Director

EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

EoE—NFF-A=+—HIFFE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

™,
40. AR B Z BB R K f# 2
(&)
(b) ADFZHEREH

Retained
Share profits/  Investment
premium Merger (accumulated  revaluation Capital
account reserve losses) reserve  contribution Total
REER/

hiaER  AHRE (RNER) REEMRE  EXLE @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT AT TAT TR TER

At 1 January 2015 R=Z2-1F-A-H 115,508 5171 8,424 - - 127,103
Total comprehensive income FREEANGLE

for the year - 44,858 - - 44,858

Exercise of share option (note 42) ~ {{EBIRE (fst42) 3,569 - - - 3569

Issue from placing (note 39(1) BRRERT (W 390)) 188,663 - - - 188,663

2014 final dividend paid B ZE-MERARS - (6,176) - - (6,176)

At 31 December 2015 RZF-RETZAZT-A 307740 31 47,106 . - 3807

At 1 January 2016 R=E—~E-A-H 307,740 317 47,106 - - 358,017
Total comprehensive income FERENGRE

for the year - - (104,276) (8,057) - (112,333)

Capital contribution EALE - - - - 11,280 11,280

At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1-H 307,740 3171 (57,170) (8,057) 11,280 256,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

41, RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium account

Share premium represents the amount of the excess of
issue price of the Company’s shares over its par value.

(ii) Mergerreserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of
its subsidiaries arising from the Group Reorganisation.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(iv) Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for land and buildings in note 4(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ BEAE X £ E AR AT

4. 1
()

(b)

REE
AEERBEEIEZEHN GRS RS
REMEERGERRIEAEREER
ERI

EEEERE
i) RKROEER

Bt (B R R AR R 1Y 2%
TEBEERMENSHE

(i) BOHEE
EHFEERRAEEEAAR
B)EE T %D Y T (B A SR B H B
BAABRAmMEZ =5 -

(i) SMERERZE

SNERERFBRERERINE
U BHMRELMN A INEZ
£ ZREBREBESVBEREK
BT SE 4Cd)ii) BT 8 & AT BUR R
B

(v) MEEMGRHE

AEBRBEAMEREME
4(e) T RIBFRIIRAM &5t
IR PKSL R BRI ) S B ik A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F

41,

—NFETZA=1—HILFE

RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 1997, over the nominal value of shares of Telefield
Holdings Limited issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (i) the present value of
future consideration of Subsequent Acquisition
Arrangement of Fargo Telecom Group (note 37(b)) at
inception and (ii) gains/losses directly reflect in equity
resulted from change of equity interests in subsidiaries
without change of control.

(viii) Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 4(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

4]

i ()

(b) RFEBEMEEREB(E)

()

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BAEER

AEENBARKRER—N
NEFREEESAHWKEN B
AR EEBRETelefield
Holdings Limited &% 5 M
METHORMEEZEANE
o

EE
EEREASTAI DK - TIRIE
PEERERERBAEE
o B 2 RIBR B 18 s A o
B o

N

& 7N % 1% A () Fargo Telecom
£ B (M 5E37(0) BB WE L
PERIIA R B8 REMIRE KR (D

] 37 £ g B 12 o) 42 0 B B 1 )
EREHS|REEERERR
RERR RS, EEIE o

URGBRER Z AREE

VAR AR A B R 2 (1 SR i R 3 R
B A M B MERMEE 4V FLIA
A E AR RER 25K
Rz SRt BRMERR TA
SHEES 2 BRIEFARTTRE
BREHEZATE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

41.

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited 2 E @ BEAE X £ E AR AT

RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ix) Proposed dividend reserve

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.

(x) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 4(l)(iv) to the consolidated

financial statements

(xi) Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between inception
fair value and proceeds of non-interest bearing loan

from a substantial shareholder.

4]

i ()
(b) fEEMERE ()
(x) FRREHHE

)

(xi)

EFFHR R TINM
AL TR 2 HE 5 R 5 4 R B i
ZEBINE  BEAEKRER
BRAE LERRAESLE
RZERSCERRIELS

KA HEmRAAME -
PHRETDRREZEREIR -

RANCRTEEEIRT HK
SRRER o Ett > RHIRER
N E KRR R EE

REEMHEE

REERFHRERNBREHR
HANAHEESREERT
BERFFEBHFARREEER
BIRERM 4O BETBRE
2o

BEXHE
ZRAE A ERR —RE
ERR® B E RS RIA L
HYZE%E
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

42.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants who
make contributions to the Group. Eligible participants include the
full-time or part-time employee of any member of the Group;
consultant or advisor of any member of the Group; director
(including executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group; any substantial shareholder
of any member of the Group and distributor, contractor, supplier,
agent, customer, business partner or service provider of any
member of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 31
December 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time
refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders” approval and issue of
a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all the
share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue at the time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period up, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

42.

VARRAD A EERE 2 (SR
LUgs A E B IR T &

ARB R —IABEEE (518 5
ERARARBEERERMNEGER2EAL
RHUEE AERZ2BALBREAKEE
AREARNEZBIRBIES  AREE
Ak B R EIM R KRR - AEEE
AKBARINES (BRATES  JFAT
EFNBEUGFNTESR)  AKEEAMKE
DA T ERRA R A EBERKE
NAEIMDHE - D e/ fER - KE -
BP BEEBHIREHERD - FEER
—E-THFF+A=FT—B4EH KRIE
SITHHRER - BRI B XA R TF
AFERX

ARRBEREBITEEBE - EITEASIAT
BT H) PR BB AR Y ] RE BT MV AR D 4B 2K
AMEEE LT HME ETRMOAI0% - AR
AR RMEMEEER AR LR - HAESE
PR ERHL N B ST ETAR AU TIB R KR - 73
AER - MITEREBEARND R PEBRER
EIRTHAAERARITEBREREFITE
BB AR BT I RE B TRV AR B - TS
B E B TR Y 30% o PE(A + — (&
ABEA - BEFEAMSEER2EA
IRENBREATERTHESRMHEE £
RARRANEMERCD ETRONI% -
EE - ROEBBIL EROBRERL
PRERNIRRA S A% - HAIEE »

BRPARAESE  THRABHEKEZR/RFS
FESEZEMNBBEATHEREALE
SNIERITES B E I REM
TZEAEAE - WETARBEEZRESK
BYFRTESKEESAZEMHEA
THE B AR M R B AR A Bl (A R IR B 3%
TR 17 79 0.1% kAR 5 72 5% 1 A B R A R] AR
MEWRETE 2 8 EH1E 50000008 7T *
ARRRNEARNS EE R -
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 7 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable solely by the
board of directors (“the Board”) or a duly authorised committee
therefore, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares on the date of the offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the options granted to a director under the Scheme are as
follows:

42. LA BERR 2K (E)

LA A H 2 B IR T &l ()

BEhBERENZZRIRNELEREZEA S
Bt ARBAARAINBERELE L
TUEM °

Eﬁ%*&*ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁa%%AU%%AD&ﬁ
FAXEZBEE2HEE BEFAEERT
JEmE VAR TH%&?E’Q&%H%&&& =
HIFER XA TE ¢ (D AR R R E
BB L A IR B A2 % B ER
B FHYHE - R ARBRDPREL B
HwmEE(nEs) °

BN T TR A ARER B RN BR
RELIREZER -

BB T - REENBREFBOT :

Number of shares issuable

Exercisable Exercise under options granted
Date of grant Vesting period period price during the year ended
BETIHAHLFEREERY
Edal=R BB AT E 1TEE BRERRTHROGHE
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
+=A=+-B +-A=+—H
22 January 2015 NIl 22 January 2015- 0.65 - 4,117,140
T—hHF i 21 January 2025
—A=-+=AH —hF—A
:+*E§
—E-_Hh%—H
—+—H
- 4,117,140
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options outstanding during the
follows:

Outstanding at the beginning ~ REH M ARITEE

42, LA BEREZNR(E)
DREREE 2BRESTS (&)
year are as FRBARITEBRENFBROT :

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—E—XRF+=ZA=t+-H _E—HF+=—A=+—H
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise

options price options price
InREFE 35 It

BREHE TEE BEREHE 1IfEE
HK$ HK$

BT BIT

of the year - - -
Granted during the year FREH - 4,117,140 0.65
Exercised during the year FARABITE - (4,117,140) 0.65
Outstanding at the end RERBARITE

of the year - -
Exercisable at the end RERR] FIT6E

of the year - -
The fair value of share options granted was determined using the ERHERENDFEA-IBABEEE
Binomial Option Pricing Model with assumptions set out as follows: BREBE  B@BEIINET -

Grant date

RHEBEM

Share price on grant date

Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Fair value of share options granted

22 January 2015

—ZE-HF

—A=+=H

RI% T B B AR E HK$0.6175 7T
1TEE HK$0.65 7 7T
TEER R 1R 55.56%
TEHRF HA 10 years
4 [ o 1) 1.496%
BRI EREN A TE HK$934,000 # 7T
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42.

43.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over a historic period equal to respective
expected life. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The 4,117,140 share options exercised in 2015 resulted in the issue of
417,140 ordinary shares of the Company and the new share capital
of HK$41,000 and share premium of HK$3,569,000. The market
share price of the Company at the exercise date of share options
was HK$2.04 per share.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Deemed disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary

On 31 March 2016, the Group disposed of its shares in Modern
Channel Limited to Telefield Medical Imaging Limited at a
consideration of HK$1, such that the Group’s equity interest in
Modern Channel Limited decreased from 100% to 55%. The
effect of the disposal is as follows:

42.

43.

PARS AR AR E5 0 2 (K (48)
LA A H 2 B IR T &l ()

BHREDRAARRRBEFRRNEE
B T8 HA 4R A 0 EE S HA R B 40 B 4% B R SO
BEE  RZEARERFHORER
BRREMT R TEEBRNTE 17
REIRITRAEEEAERMELFE

—REBITEA AN 4015 BT EEE
%éfﬁzl, 17,140 AR 78 A R) 3 38 AR 2 8 38 AR AR
41,0007 7T & B 17 3% 8 3,569,000 7 7T © 7%
ARRERETERBNRNTEAEER
20487T °

rEReRERME

RIFHE—BHE QR 230 #
=®

RoF-—AF=A=1—H A4HE
it & H ¥ Modern Channel Limited &
g 7 F Telefield Medical Imaging
Limited * KEAVET - Bt - &
B 7 Modern Channel Limited 2 A% ﬁﬁ
FR100% 3 2 55% ° & & R 2 &
A

(a)

HK$'000
TAT

Carrying amount of share of net liabilities PEEEREFEECREE

disposed of 860
Consideration received BURE =
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity BERESERZ HEWE 860

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEEREEX B H R A 7
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43,

FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and

associates

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
on 7 October 2015 (completion date) the Group disposed of

the following subsidiaries and as

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Noble Treasure Holdings Limited
MEERERAR

Affonso Limited

Allied Express (China) Limited
EH (PE)BRAT

Alagona Holdings Limited

Brilliant Ace Limited
BHREBR AT

Brilliant Ace Communications
Private Limited

Calibre Holdings Limited

sociates:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AR/ AL

B.V.
RBRLES

B.V.L.
RBRLES

Hong Kong
B

BV
RBRELES

Hong Kong
B

India

g

B.V.L.
RBRLES

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRARRE

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

REREE
1ETHEBR

1,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

1000 REREE
[Ei:0k 25 )

Ordinary shares of HK$1
1B TTH LR

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

1REREAE
1ETHEAR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
1AL Ak

50,000 equity share of
Rs.10 each

50,000 R EREE
10 & LB R R

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

1REREE
1R TR

meaReRERWMEE)

(b) HEMBRARARBEQT

BaEEA

e
\
\‘\.

B mR M E16 FTE - =

T—HF+HEB(GEKRBEH) - $%
BHEATHE AR R E QT

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
profit sharing
Eﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ/
RER/HE
/rmﬂﬁ otk

100%

51%

100%

100%

51%

51%

100%

Annual Report &3k 2016

Principal activities

TEEHR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZ

Investment holding

REZB

Property investment

EISE

Investment holding

REER
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43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43,
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

FeEE]

nE RN (8)

(b) HEMBRARARBEQT (H)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

SR B LR

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
profit sharing
EiEERER
h?%/ #2
/ﬁﬂﬁ

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRBERE

Principal activities

TEEH

Ease Able Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Investment holding
HEARAF B 1AL Ak BEER
Falcom GmbH Germany 100,000 ordinary shares 53%  Trading of modems and
=6 of EURL of each related parts for
100,000 B A& communications
1BUTR L R products
EERAERN AL
R AR R AR AR
Fargo Telecom Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 64%  Investment holding and
B HK$10,000 trading of
10,000 BT E) E @A communications
products
BB K@
HD%%
Fargo Telecom Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1,063,830 ordinary 64%  Investment holding
EBERTEE shares of US$1 each BEER
1063830 REREE
1ETHE AR
Fargo Telecom Technologies India 50,000 equity shares 64%  Trading of
Private Limited HIE of Rs.10 each communications
50,000 &R EE products
10 L iR BAERES
G.AEM.S., Inc. US.A. 13,265 shares at no 51%  Design, development,
B par value trading, distribution
13,265 R EEE R D and sale of mobile
electronic gaming and
entertainment systems
//H:@J %ﬁﬁ&%iﬁi
REHGE

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F—~NF+-H=+—HILFF

43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43,
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

meaReRERWMEE)

(b) HEMBRARARBEQT (H)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

EMAL B LR

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRAZRE

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
profit sharing
EiEaRER
RER/HE
BHEDE

Principal activities

TEEHR

GAEMS International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51%  Trading, distribution and
YR TERBRAR i HK$1,000 sales of mobile
100078 & Ak electronic gaming and
entertainment systems
BRI RIRE RS
MEE Dk
HE
Greenware Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51%  Environmental
HREBSBRAR &8 HK$2,050,005 and monitoring system
preference shares of integration services
HK$3,000 RREEZAGEN
2,050,005 & T PR
L@k & 3,000
BITHE LR
Lucky Century International B.V.I. 1,000 ordinary shares of 51%  Investment holding
Limited RERLES US$1 each REZMR
1000 REREE
1ETHEER
Macar Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100%  Investment holding
EBELHS US$1 each REER
1REREE
1ETHEER
Maestro Wireless Holdings Limited ~ B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares of 64%  Inactive
ABEARS US$1 each TEE
100 RBREE
1ETHE AR
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #AB4e s xR (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued) (b) HEHBATREZ QT (E)
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
EiEaRER
RER/HE
HELREE AR,/ Rt BRTRAERAK BHEIE TEER
Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 64%  Trading of modems and
EREGREERAT i HK$100 related parts for
100 TR L AR communications
products
BEERAERNAY
R AR AR AR
Metro Creator Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding and
REARAF BB HK$10,000 trading of multimedia
10,000 & 0K 3@A% products
REBBRREER
SHRBER
Phoenix Choice Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share of 100%  Investment holding
RBEIHE US$1 each BEER
1 EREE
1ETHE AR
Rydeen North America Inc. US.A. 1,000 shares at no 75%  Design, development,
EH par value trading, distribution of
1000 R EEERH consumer electronics
EFHEMMR
HE - EERDH
Smart Gears Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 64%  Investment holding and
HaREARAR BB HK$100 trading of plastic parts
1004 TR & Bk for communications

products, provision of
software and hardware
development services

REZRKEE B
EmfZREH
RO AR 1
e

China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited #EE 2 FEE X EEHE A7
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43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  43. A RS REXRWTE (&)
FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued) (b) HEMBATREZ AT (&)
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
B EaRER/
hTE//\*
HEBARERE HMAY/ Rt BRTRBZRE BHED TEER
STI Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 49%  Trading of professional
ERREER AR B HK$8,000,000 audio equipments
8,000,000/ TTH) EXE2EEBES
LIEA%
Telefield GAEMS Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Investment holding
B 1AL AR BREER
Telefield India Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 51%  Investment holding
B 1B TTH LR REER
Telefield Industrial (India) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51%  Investment holding
0 HK$15,000 REER
15,000 B TR LB
Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 200 registered shares of 51%  Investment holding and
EHFE EUR125 each sub-licensing of
200 Bk E trademark
125 BT Ry AR BREERREE
&m BRI
Telefield Vision Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding and
ARENNKBERAT B HK$10,000 trading of computer
10,000 8 A @Ak accessories
REER N EIME
25
Telefield Industries (India) India 1,000,000 equity shares 51%  Electronic manufacturing
Private Limited g of Rs.10 each service for home
1,000,000 ik &A% appliances
EE10E LAY FHEBRETRE
B AR
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #AB4e s xR (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued) (b) HEHBATREZ QT (E)
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
EiEaRER
RER/HE
HELREE AR,/ Rt BRTRAERAK BHEIE TEER
Telefield Zen Industries India 1,000,000 equity shares 51%  Trading of consumer
Private Limited HE of Rs.10 each electronics
1,000,000 B& A% ETHEMmES
HEE10 B
sk
TK-Trade S.R.L. Italy Share capital of 51%  Marketing and agency
BEAF EUR15,000 services
F& 815,000 BL T st E R RIERE
TrekStor GmbH Germany Share capital of 51%  Assembling, marketing
== EUR25,000 and distribution of
P% 7% 25,000 BT “TrekStor” branded
products such as
portable storage
devices and

multimedia products
HBE - EENDH

[ TrekStor | mIEE MR *

MEEAFREEN

ZEBED

TrekStor Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51%  Holding of trademark
N HK$100 and intellectual
10078 T ) & R property, licensing
of trademark
AR RS
ERE - ARERT
(5]
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, 4 A& mE2XMEE (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued) (b) HEKBARKEEAT (/&)
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
EiEaRER
hTE//\*
HELREE AR,/ Rt BRTRAERAK BRES TEEK
TS Technology International Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 60%  Investment holding
Limited B HK$20,000 RERK
20,000 TT#0 AR
R (RN BR AR PRC Registered capital of 64%  Trading of
Smart Gears (Shenzhen) Limited ] RMB 1,500,000 communication
(Note) AMERAREK products and the
1,500,000 7T provision of software
and hardware
development devices
BE B Em KR
R R
ENrERE(LE)BRAR PRC Registered capital of 100%  Marketing and
Telefield Vision (Shanghai) Limited S$520,000 distribution of
(Note) HER computer accessories
520,000 7T EHRSHEREMS
HBLEE(EN)BERAT PRC Registered capital of 100%  Inactive
Xin Qu Pin (Shenzhen) Limited e HK$500,000 s
(Note) AR
500,000/87T
KEYOS GmbH Germany Share capital of 30%  Designing, developing
=& EUR 41,667 and distributing
FRK 41,667 BT smart key
Fit RERDH
;EI Abﬁ:ﬁaﬁ
King Choice Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares 49%  Investment holding
HEIBRAA BB of HK$1 each BEER
100,000 R G MR EE
BRI EER

Note: English name for identification purpose
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #AB4e s xR (8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and associates (Continued) (b) HEMBRARARBEQT (H)
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: REERENEEFENT :
HK$'000
T
Net liabilities disposed: EHESEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) M - BB KRR (HEET19) 36,375
Goodwill (note 22) R (BtaE22) 3,471
Intangible assets (note 23) | EE (K1:+23) 22,037
Investment in associates REEE R AR E 750
Deferred tax assets (note 38) BT IEE 2= (M 7E 38) 513
Inventories =& 96,187
Trade receivables FEWE 5 AR K 54,197
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE ~ 2 e R EMEREIER 60,148
Amount due from non-controlling shareholder FE U B & B FEFE AR AR SR R TE
of subsidiaries 1,593
Current tax assets BVEAF IR & B 5,264
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S5 16,763
Trade payables FERTE SR (31,723)
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries & B A & 3E 12 A% IR 5 2018 (300)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A & E b B FIE (89,240)
Bank borrowings RITEE (29,875)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss AV EFABZNERHEE (1,353)
Product warranty provisions (note 36) E iR B (HaE36) (16,560)
Amount due to remaining group JE 82 T EEE R IE (273,048)
Current tax liabilities BNEAF IR B & (1,910)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 38) EEFLTE B & (K7t 38) (4,815)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEEEFE (151,526)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve e R A (3,810)
Sales loan HEEM! 273,048
Professional expenses HERY 4,832
Non-controlling interests eI R 49,327
171,871
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries and associates (note 16) HEN B A 7 L2 A/ ERE
(K17t 16) (2,071)
Total consideration RERE 169,800
Consideration satisfied by
Cash LR & &1 RE 169,800
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEEARMIRSTRAFE
Cash consideration received BUWIRER(E 169,800
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERSMRESEED (16,763)
153,037
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had a guarantee
(the “Guarantee”) in favor of a supplier of a disposed subsidiary
(“Disposed subsidiary”), which was disposed of under the Disposal,
for a sum equivalent to HK$20.3 million (USD2.6 million)
representing a trade balance under dispute between the Disposed
Subsidiary and that supplier. The Disposed Subsidiary had issued
counter guarantee to the Company to indemnify the Company for
any loss in relation to the Guarantee. Apart from the above, the
Group and Company did not have any significant contingent

44,

—AE+ZA=1+—
A RNEBEHBER(ZER]D) —BHEE
B EARBREEFEHENEHE
WEAR([BEEHEWBAR)MEER -
4858 18 % 72 20,300,000 78 7T (2,600,000 3
7m MTEEEﬁ%W% A Bt ER

SiEH - BHEWBARERAR
ﬂ%ﬁ&%ﬁ'uﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%%ﬁZE
A BRI E R o B AT E s

liabilities. AEBERAQNRTEEMEAKAGLRE -
45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45, BAFEIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period AEBNRERRNEARASERNT
are as follows:
2016 2015
—B—REF —hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT TFETT
Plant and machinery R MBS
Contracted but not yet incurred BRIHERES 800 426
46. LEASE COMMITMENTS 46. THEFPE
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments R=ZZE—R"FE+=—_A=+—8 " RETA

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

B EHEANNARARRERERRE
BT

2016 2015

—B-AF —hfF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THxT FHEIT

Within one year —F R 13,602 14,615
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFAF(HEEMERIEEAR) 12,241 25,090
25,843 39,705

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its staff quarters, factories and offices. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranged from one to ten years and rentals are
fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

REHEFRREAKERETREIRES
BEEMAZERNNES  KEDEEN
BN F—2+F - HERAHRABET
g YTEEHAES -
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BERR S
In addition to those related party transactions and balances BiGEMEHREREMH A FENRELTR
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the 2 REERIN - REBRFEAERESH N
Group had the following transactions with its related parties during T™R5:
the year:
Directors having BEEZERND
beneficial interest EEpg 2016 2015
ZE-5KE 3
HK$'000 HK$000
TR T
Share-based payments (note 42) AR R 2 (437 Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry ERA| R
(Wit 42) - 934
Rent paid to related companies BEfiBEEARRSE
— Big Dragon International — Big Dragon International  Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  EJst st 4
Investment Ltd Investment Limited - 1,100
— Swintown Investment Limited - BRREBRAR Mr. Ng Kim Yuen REEREE - 270
— Grand Access Limited — b BRAT] Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEALE - 280
- 1,650
Sales to related companies HETHENT
— Farindo Trade Services Limited = Farindo Trade N/A TNaf
Services Limited - 1,487
— Maestro Wireless Solutions Limited —BRESRHEABRAT M. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  Ebstse 4 - 120
— STI Technology Limited —ZBNREBRAH Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve Bt %4 - 94
— Telefield GAEMS Limited — Telefield GAEMS Limited  Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  EfE#t 4 - 489
Sales to a joint venture HET-HAELE
— Groovio Company Limited — Groovio Company N/A TER
Limited - 260
Management fee received from B—RAECEURE
ajoint venture EEE
— Groovio Company Limited — Groovio Company N/A TNam
Limited - 60
Non-interest bearing loans from a RE—BEEREN
substantial shareholder (note 35) REET (A 35)
— Power Port Holdings Limited — Power Port N/A TNaf
Holdings Limited 59,712 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE —E—NF+_-A=+—HIFF

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid during

the year and set out in note 15(a).

On 7 October 2015, the Group disposed of a group of subsidiaries
and associates (as set out in note 43(b)) to the then ultimate parent
of the Group, Dragon Fortune International Limited (“Dragon
Fortune”), with cash consideration of HK$169,800,000. Mr. Cheng

Han Ngok Steve has beneficial interest in Dragon Fortune.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has cash and available-for-sale
financial assets deposited with a brokerage firm which is a related
company of the Group amounting to HK$67,000 (2015

HK$334,000,000) and HK$112,224,000 (2015: Nil), respectively.

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) The Group has already repaid the non-interest bearing loans
from a substantial shareholder at principal amount of

HK$70,000,000 after the end of reporting period in full.

(b) The Group has entered into a memorandum of understanding
on 22 June 2016 (the “MOU”) for the acquisition of a target
group from a Vendor and the Group paid the Refundable
Deposit of HK$140 million as earnest money to the Vendor
(note 29). The MOU has lapsed pursuant to the terms of the
MOU and the Refundable Deposit has been returned by the
Vendor to the Group after the end of the reporting period.

47.

48.

BERRS (&)

TRERERENFM(ANARTAEENF
RE RS ) FHIFE MR 153) ©

RN-ZE—AF+ALR AEBEEE—A
BB R A BB A | (R PR =E 43(0) Fk)
AEBERNRKREARELEBERA
a(sEE]) - fﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ%m%ooooo;‘%
T o EMETRRE AN BE LA B

RZBE—A"FF+ZA=+—08 ' 25£EB8HE
RERAIHHESREES B A67000%E
7t( = F — A F : 334,000,000% 7T ) &
12,224,000 T (ZE—FF : &) EBEA
—MREE (BAEE ZBERT]) -

HEMRER

(@) MREHRE AEECTBHEE—
HEBRREE S EFRAE 70,000,000

/%7["
b) RZEBE—XNFRNA-+=-H XxEEH

MEE SIS B IZEB M —HR
FEsE ((REERER]) - AEER
& 75 X 1+1140,000,000 3 7T 2 ] iR 38
A ERBE S (MFE29) - W& H
K& - BIBRBERSRIR SRR
EREERAMERESERNAERRE
AREBR]E ©
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i FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Al dh
A FE IR E
The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December HREBHEZE-—Z—R"E+_A=+—BILFEHN
2016 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as at A EXERAEBRR-_Z— X E+_A=+—H
31 December 2016 are those set out in the audited financial statements. MG EEE « AEMERH N EEZIIERERA °
The summary below does not form part of the audited financial A TEBEEI NERK K EZ T BRI AEBMD ©
statements.
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“T-RHF —T-F —BT-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET THL FET FAL
(restated)
(&%)
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 748,749 1008561 1,032,957 1,825,542 1,458,192
Cost of sales SHERM A (598,835) (796,467) (807,480)  (1,452,278)  (1,176,863)
Gross profit E5 149,914 212,094 225,477 373,264 281,329
Other income HelA 34,419 13,687 15,860 23,872 15,686
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAY (49,943) (55,365) (65,900) (125,547) (91,515)
Administrative expenses THEHR (131,420) (76,573) (75,303) (153,618) (125,378)
Other operating expenses Higg & B (74,637) (43,729) (35,965) (66,988) (46,273)
(Loss)/profit from operations =g (FR),/ B8R (71,667) 50,114 64,169 50,983 33,849
Finance costs BMEMA (4,297) (6,081) (7,456) (13,300) (10,854)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates D IEEE AT,/ (E1E) - = = (129) =
Share of loss of a joint venture HME—HAELEER - (117) (1,433) = =
(Loss)/profit before tax BB (FE) %A (75,964) 43,916 55,280 37,554 22,995
Income tax expense FT{5HiR (11,074) (5,549) (8,144) (6,140) (3,507)
(Loss)/profit for the year from HELEEK
continuing operation EE(FB)H5F (87,038) 38,367 47,136 31,414 19,488
Loss for the year from BRIEREER Y
discontinued operations FEER - (79,432) (89,409) - -
(Loss)/Profit for the year £E (FR),/ &7 (87,038) (41,065) (42,373) 31,414 19,488
Attributable to: DRy 2
Owners of the Company VNI 2N (82,646) (1,844) 577 28,566 23,345
Non-controlling interests FEE R e (4,392) (39,221) (42,850) 2,848 (3,857)
(87,038) (41,065) (42,273) 31,414 19,488
182  China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited ZEE @ EE X EE AR A )
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE —T-HE —ZT-@mFE —T—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTRET FAET FAT T FHET
(restated)
(&%)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE  BERFERERS
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 800,284 853,448 1,092,094  1,145813 861,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (336,647) (305,446) (740,547) (755,423) (498,115)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS L3 g 11,210 5,958 18,209 (12,596) (2,759)
474,847 553,960 369,756 377,794 361,022
Note: As mentioned in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group disposed Kiet : BRERAMERERMEI6E  ASERBE=S—H

of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31 December 2015. The
results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the years presented have been
reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations above while the results
for each of the two years ended 31 December 2013 have not been reclassified and
represented both the continuing and discontinued operations.

FH_A=Zt-HLEFEHEETHBARRBE R
A BEHEMBRARRBMEARNNRZIFENEEES
MR MREXBURBRERILEERT  ME=E
—E =T A=+ HIMEFESFOERATR
ENMOE  UHRRFBBELCEREDRILEEE -
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INFORMATION FORINVESTORS
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LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code: 1143

Ticker Symbol
Reuters:
Bloomberg:

1143.HK
1143 HK Equity
KEY DATES

27 January 201
Listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange

28 March 2017
Announcement of 2016 Annual Results

29 May 2017
Annual General Meeting

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal:

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.chinahealthcare.com.hk
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